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PROFILE

Enriching lives with our programmes and services
that inform, educate and entertain.

To be the leader in inspiring and creating
memorable entertainment experiences.
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NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED

PROFILE

NoonTalk Media Limited (“NoonTalk Media” or the “Company”) (SGX:SEJ) is a Singapore-based media entertainment
company specialising in artiste and talent management, event conceptualisation and management, as well as
multimedia, film and drama production. The Company was listed on the Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) on 22 November 2022.

Positioned in the Chinese-language media sector, NoonTalk Media aims to strengthen its market presence and
establish itself as Singapore’s premier media agency, recognised for quality entertainment content and impactful
experiences.

In February 2025, the Company incorporated NTM Masterpiece Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary, to spearhead
company-driven commercial initiatives. Following this, NoonTalk Media, together with its subsidiary, is collectively
referred to as the “Group”. This structure enhances the Group’s ability to pursue new projects, expand its commercial
footprint and support long-term growth in the media sector.

Aligned with this vision, the Group continues to prioritise sustainability and inclusivity. We are committed to fostering
a balanced workforce and promoting the environmental and social well-being of our stakeholders. Through green
initiatives, sustainable technologies and the reach of our media platforms, we strive to create positive change and
deliver lasting value to the community and beyond.

We deliver a comprehensive and integrated range of media and entertainment services that create exceptional value
for our clients. Our core business is structured around two key segments:

MANAGEMENT
& EVENTS

PRODUCTION

This segment encompasses artiste This segment comprises services
and talent representation, project relating to multimedia creation and
implementation, as well as event production, as well as drama, film
conceptualisation and execution for and video conceptualisation from
clients. pre- to post-production.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
AND PROGRESS

Our growth plan is driven by three key priorities. Over the past financial year, we made tangible progress in raising
our profile, enhancing our capabilities and building partnerships to strengthen our competitiveness.

AMPLIFY BRAND VISIBILITY

We amplify brand visibility through strategic collaborations, pioneering initiatives and high-potential investments. This focused
approach unlocks new opportunities, accelerates expansion into untapped markets and strengthens our leadership in the
Chinese media entertainment industry, delivering sustainable and scalable growth.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

We strengthened our regional presence with the announcement of the Golden Singa Awards, an annual international
Chinese film awards initiated from Singapore. As our first venture into staging an international event, the Awards represents
a strategic step in amplifying our brand visibility and building stronger industry connections. Since its announcement, the
Awards has facilitated collaborations and created potential investment opportunities, raising our profile among audiences,
stakeholders and the international film community. These outcomes lay the foundation for the Awards to evolve into a
flagship event that will enhance our brand, reinforce our positioning in Chinese-language entertainment and create new
opportunities.

Beyond the Awards, we enhanced our production capabilities through investments in specialised skills and collaborations.
This strengthened our service offerings and our work has been well recognised, leading to recurring appointments by
clients and new referrals.

Collectively, these achievements elevate our brand, reinforce our positioning as a leader in media production and
underscore our role as a Chinese-focused media entertainment company committed to promoting and supporting
Chinese-language content while contributing to raising industry standards.

FORWARD FOCUS
We will continue to scale the Golden Singa Awards brand by leveraging the platform to secure high-profile partnerships,
generate media coverage and engage audiences. These efforts will increase the visibility of the Awards beyond Singapore,

strengthen its commercial value and potentially open up new monetisation opportunities, with its growing reputation and
prestige supporting sustainable growth and long-term shareholder value.
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DEEPEN CORE CAPABILITIES

We drive growth by strengthening our integrated media creation and production expertise, investing in talent and
innovation to expand our capabilities, capture opportunities and redefine possibilities for our clients in the fast-evolving
entertainment landscape.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

We enhanced our creative and production capabilities by streamlining processes and applying advanced technologies
in our productions. These efforts have deepened our expertise, improved efficiency and enabled the delivery of higher-
quality, more impactful content.

During the year, we advanced Al-generated content (AIGC), integrating it into projects such as ChildAid 2024 and Halloween
Horror Nights by Universal Studios Singapore, and experimenting with new creative approaches.

FORWARD FOCUS

We will continue to build specialised skills and pursue strategic collaborations with overseas partners. By co-developing
content and leveraging global AIGC expertise, we aim to expand our creative scope and remain competitive in the evolving
media and entertainment landscape.

FORGE COMPLEMENTARY
BUSINESS COLLABORATIONS

We cultivate a media ecosystem through partnerships with complementary businesses, expanding our capabilities to
deliver comprehensive solutions. This approach provides access to valuable resources and specialised expertise, keeping
us agile and responsive to market trends. Through these collaborations, we elevate our service offerings and strengthen
our competitive position.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

During the year, we partnered with clients on micro drama projects, managing the entire content development pipeline
— from storytelling and scripting to production and distribution. These collaborations strengthened our service offerings
and enhanced our ability to respond swiftly to evolving market trends.

By partnering with leading players and fostering an ecosystem of collaboration, we gained access to specialised capabilities
and capital that support scalability. These achievements position us well to capture emerging opportunities in digital
content while creating sustainable value for our shareholders.

FORWARD FOCUS

While micro drama and short-form web reality content are gaining traction, the format is still in the early stages of
development in Singapore. We see an opportunity to lead by developing locally relevant, fast-paced, emotionally engaging
and trending stories. This approach enables us to offer micro drama and web reality content as a commercial product,
enhancing our digital entertainment presence and driving business growth while supporting the Group's long-term
prospects.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 ]



KEY HIGHLIGHTS
FY2025
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Stronger profitability was achieved through disciplined cost
management and a sharper focus on higher-margin work.
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DR LYNDA WEE DASMOND KOH
Non-Executive Chairman Executive Director and
and Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED

FY2025 marks a pivotal step forward for NoonTalk Media
Limited. We delivered stronger revenue growth, sharper
operational improvements and meaningful progress on
our strategic priorities. Guided by intent and discipline, we
are building on the foundations of recent years to position
the Group for scalable, sustainable growth.

The media and entertainment landscape is undergoing
rapid change, fuelled by digital platforms, new formats and
emerging technologies. For NoonTalk Media, this disruption
presents opportunity for growth. We are capitalising on
these shifts to engage audiences across new platforms,
broaden our creative scope and hone our agility to lead in
a dynamic era of content consumption.

Through disciplined execution, we delivered meaningful
financial progress, with revenue rising 41% to S$6.26
million and gross profit more than doubling, underpinned
by higher-margin projects and tighter cost management.
Major contracts, such as the SG60 community concert and
a growing pipeline of mid-sized productions, validated the
effectiveness of our growth strategy.

Our leaner cost base was further reinforced through the
relocation to new premises at more favourable rental
terms, generating savings that enhanced efficiency and
reinforced operating resilience. With stronger margins and
disciplined execution, the Group stands on firmer footing,
well-positioned to turn evolving industry dynamics into
scalable, recurring revenue opportunities.

A defining milestone is the upcoming debut of the Golden
Singa Awards, our first international awards event
dedicated to recognising excellence in Chinese-language
films and filmmakers. Serving as a platform for regional
engagement, this initiative has elevated our profile and
reinforced our positioning as a Singapore-based media
entertainment company with a strong leadership in
Chinese-language content. As it evolves into an annual
flagship event with Pan-Asian reach, the Awards will
become a cornerstone for brand visibility, recurring value
creation and cross-border collaboration.

Alongside this, the groundwork laid in recent years—
expanding networks and strengthening capabilities—is
bearing fruit in the form of significant opportunities and
strategic partnerships. We have advanced our production
capabilities by introducing new technologies, including
Al-generated content and streamlining workflows. High-
profile projects such as ChildAid 2024 and Halloween
Horror Nights by Universal Studios Singapore showcased our
creativity as well as our technical depth.

SHAREHOLDERS

We continue to diversify into scalable, digital-native
formats such as micro dramas, web reality series and
short-form content. These formats enable us to respond
faster to audience trends, deepen client engagement
and create recurring monetisation opportunities through
live-streaming, content licensing and owned media. This
expansion enhances our relevance with younger, digitally
engaged audiences while creating new revenue streams
across platforms that strengthen long-term growth.

The rising recognition of the Golden Singa Awards, coupled
with strategic collaborations and technology investments,
positions NoonTalk Media for broader influence and
unlocks new commercial opportunities across the region.
Looking ahead, we will continue to invest in specialised
talent, co-develop high-impact content and forge new
partnerships—expanding both our creative capacity and
geographic reach.

FY2025 signals our transition from recovery to strategic
growth. We have reinforced our core expertise, exercised
financial discipline and now advance into the next phase
with clarity and confidence. With proven creative
capabilities, an expanding regional presence and a
disciplined growth agenda, NoonTalk Media is well-
positioned to deliver sustainable value for shareholders.

We remain firmly focused on driving profitability,
strengthening resilience and building a future-ready
organisation that thrives in a fast-evolving media landscape.

Thank you for your continued trust and support.

Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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DR LYNDA WEE
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director

Wee Keng Neo, Lynda (Lynda Wee) serves as the Company’'s Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director. She
was appointed to the Board on 27 October 2022 and was re-elected as a Director of the Company on 23 October 2023.

Lynda is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Bootstrap Pte Ltd, a boutique business consultancy firm. Prior to
founding Bootstrap, she served as Senior Vice President of Learning and Development at CapitaLand Limited, where she
was also the Founding Principal of the CapitaLand Institute of Management and Business (CLIMB), focusing on leadership
development and innovation. She served as an independent director of HTL International Holdings Limited, listed on the
SGX-ST, from 2013 until its delisting in 2016.

She is an Advisor to the Singapore Environment Council's Communities Outreach Committee and also serves as an Adjunct
Associate Professor at the Nanyang Business School, Nanyang Technological University. Lynda is a Senior Practising
Management Consultant with the Singapore Business Advisors and Consultants Council. She was bestowed the Skills
Future Fellowship in 2022.

Lynda was conferred her Doctorate in Philosophy by the University of Stirling. She also holds a Master of Business Administration
and Bachelor of Science, Management (University Highest Honours) from Southern lllinois University Carbondale, as well as a
Bachelor of Business Administration from the National University of Singapore.

SOH GIM TEIK
Lead Independent Director

Soh Gim Teik is the Company's Lead Independent Director. He was appointed to the Board on 27 October 2022 and was
re-elected as a Director of the Company on 23 October 2023.

Gim Teik is a partner at Finix Corporate Advisory LLP, a company that provides advisory services on Board and directorship
matters in the areas of strategic management, corporate restructuring, finance and corporate governance. He has over
40 years of experience in corporate advisory, governance, finance and general management. In addition, he holds board
appointments in several private and public sector organisations.

He currently serves as an Independent Director of Wilmar International Limited and Olive Tree Estates Limited, both listed
on the SGX-ST. He is the Chairman of Farrer Park Hospital Pte Ltd and a board member of MOH Holdings Pte Ltd and
the Agency for Science, Technology and Research (A*STAR), where he also chairs the Audit and Risk Committees. All the
aforesaid appointments are independent and non-executive.

Gim Teik holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from the University of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants and a Fellow of the Singapore Institute of Directors. He was conferred the Public Service Medal
(PBM) for his outstanding contributions to Singapore's public healthcare sector.

CRUZ TENG
Independent Director

Cruz Teng was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 27 October 2022 and was re-elected to the
position on 28 October 2024. He is currently the Managing Director of DZY Studio, a content and communications
consultancy he founded in 2025.

A media and communications professional with nearly 30 years of experience spanning various industries, Cruz
commenced his media career in 1996 as a freelance presenter with Mediacorp’s YES 933. He went on to head the station,
achieving year-on-year growth in both ratings and revenue. He was the Executive Chairman of the Singapore Hit Awards
and the Global Chinese Music Awards.

Cruz transitioned into senior brand and communications roles across the banking, insurance, automotive and land
transport sectors from 2016 to 2025. In these positions, he shaped global brand narratives, managed reputational risks
and led strategic messaging for both internal and external stakeholders.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Translation and Interpretation from the Singapore Institute of Management University. He

is an accredited member of the Institute of Public Relations of Singapore and an accredited director with the Singapore
Institute of Directors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dasmond Koh Chin Eng (Dasmond Koh) is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 1 December 2014 and was re-elected as a Director of the Company on 28 October 2024.

As the Company’'s CEO, Dasmond leads the strategic planning and development of the Company, driving its long-term
vision and direction. He is responsible for identifying new business trends and growth opportunities to advance the
Company's business objectives and strengthen its market position.

Working closely with the Board of Directors, he establishes key strategic focus areas and develops corporate strategies
aimed at achieving long-term, sustainable business outcomes. Over the past decade, Dasmond has played a pivotal role
in the company’'s growth, solidifying its strong presence in Singapore’s Chinese media landscape.

A stalwart in Singapore’'s media and entertainment scene, Dasmond began his career as a deejay with Mediacorp YES 933,
where he won multiple accolades - including the YES 933 Most Popular DJ Award for three consecutive years. He went on
to become an actor as well as a host for television and events.

Dasmond graduated from Temasek Polytechnic with a Diploma in Business with Merit. He is an accredited director with
the Singapore Institute of Directors.

Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Zheng Xianbin (Jed Tay) is the Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the Company. He was appointed
to the Board on 27 October 2022 and was re-elected as a Director on 23 October 2023.

As COO, Jed oversees the Company's daily operations with a focus on business development and people management,
contributing to its strategic goals and driving sustainable growth. Additionally, he oversees multimedia production as well
as event conceptualisation and management, shaping the strategic direction for these key segments.

He began his career in design and multimedia, contributing to national-scale productions such as Singapore’s National Day
Parade. With deep expertise in motion graphic design and strong passion for emerging technologies, he has spearheaded
innovative initiatives for high-profile events including ChildAid, Chingay and the recent SG60 Concert for Bishan-Toa Payoh
and Marymount GRO. Notably, his integration of Al into these productions has garnered international industry recognition.

Jed holds a Diploma in Motion Graphics and Broadcast Design with Merit from Nanyang Polytechnic. He was named Young
Designer in 2010 by the Design Singapore Council and is a recipient of several awards, including the IDM Gold Award from
the then Media Development Authority of Singapore (now conferred by IMDA). He is also an accredited director with the
Singapore Institute of Directors.

EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Terence Tan is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) at NoonTalk Media Limited where he leads the Finance team and oversees
the Company’s finance and accounting functions, including financial reporting, controls, treasury, tax, risk management
and budget planning.

As a key member of the management team, Terence provides strategic recommendations to the CEO and senior leadership,
contributing commercial insights across the business to support the achievement of strategic objectives and performance
targets.

With a career spanning three decades, Terence has acquired extensive experience in auditing, financial reporting,
accounting, corporate finance, as well as strategic decision-making, particularly in the areas of country expansion plans,
treasury and funding. He began his professional career as an auditor at KPMG and has held key management positions
at Volkswagen and Trans Eurokars.

Terence holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor of Accountancy from the National University

of Singapore. He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of both the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and
CPA Australia.

NOONTALK LIMITED

BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS FY2025

DRIVING GROWTH THROUGH
CLIENT CONFIDENCE

In FY2025, NoonTalk Media strengthened its presence in the events and entertainment space,
achieving steady growth through a combination of recurring and new engagements. The Group
also launched the Golden Singa Awards, an international Chinese film awards initiative that has
enhanced our profile and strengthened strategic partnerships. Our capabilities were showcased
at high-profile events such as ChildAid 2024 and the Bishan-Toa Payoh and Marymount GRO SG60
Concert, further expanding our visibility and reflecting the quality of our work.

Building on these successes, repeat engagements and client referrals throughout the year
broadened our client base. We further extended our services across diverse industries,
strengthening our portfolio. Notable projects included assignments with Holistic Way, Jewel Changi
Airport, Marina Bay Sands, POP MART, Resorts World Sentosa and the Singapore Badminton
Association, highlighting the breadth and impact of our work across multiple sectors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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HIGHLIGHTS FY2025 HIGHLIGHTS FY2025

KEY PROJECTS AND
ACHIEVEMENTS

GOLDEN SINGA AWARDS: ELEVATING NOONTALK MEDIA ON THE GLOBAL STAGE

NoonTalk Media launched the Golden Singa Awards at a media briefing on 23 June 2025, marking a significant milestone
in our strategic growth and our first foray into staging an international event. The inaugural edition, taking place on
1 December 2025, coincides with SG60, a celebration of Singapore’s national milestone and its emergence as a global city.

Positioned as a premier annual international Chinese film award, the Golden Singa Awards will recognise cinematic
excellence, showcase distinguished talent and drive cross-border creative collaboration. Beyond elevating Singapore’s
profile as a trusted hub for world-class events, this initiative supports the Group's strategy to strengthen brand equity,
deepen engagement with Chinese-speaking markets and create new avenues for revenue growth and long-term
shareholder value.

Sl N
—  GOLOEN SINGA AWARDS

LN SENAL Amangd
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BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS FY2025
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PRODUCTION AND EVENT
MANAGEMENT

BISHAN-TOA PAYOH AND MARYMOUNT GRO SG60 CONCERT

In celebration of Singapore’s 60th anniversary, Bishan-Toa Payoh and Marymount GRO hosted a two-evening community
concert attended by nearly 20,000 residents. NoonTalk Media served as the show producer for this landmark event,
showcasing our expertise in delivering large-scale, high-impact productions.

- The concert featured an atkstar line-up, including veteran artiste Fann Wong, Singapore Idol Taufik Batisah and acclaimed
singers such as Mavis Hee, Jocie'Guo and Benjamin Kheng, and concluded with a spectacular six-minute fireworks display.
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Scope of work: Event Conceptu isation aad-Ma’ag'pm-én.t,- e
- Multimedia Creation and Videoﬁhy =
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PRODUCTION AND EVENT
MANAGEMENT

KFF SINGAPORE BADMINTON OPEN 2025 b

Client: Singapore Badminton Association
Scope of work: Public Relations Services and Social Media
Management

POP TOY SHOW 2024 MOLLY ANNIVERSARY STATUES
POP-UP STORE

—
Client: POP MART ONE PARTY ONE MBS ‘ _-.

Scope of work: Public Relations Services and Client: POP MART Client: Marina Bay Sands
Videography SEeReboTgrk: Publ!c RefEE Scope of work: Event Conceptualisation and Management, imedia
POP MART ION STORE OPENING Services _

Creation, Photography and Videography

|

Client: POP MART
Scope of work: Public Relations Services

MICE CNY MUSIC VIDEO
PRODUCTION

INTERVIEW WITH

: DR LAM PIN MIN Client: Marina Bay Sands

Scope of work: Video Production

Client: People’s Action Party
. Scope of work: Video Production

2024 BEST OF BEST AWARDS

Client: Marina Bay Sands

Scope of work: Event Conceptualisation and Management, .
Show Production, Multimedia Creation, SANDS SUPPLIER EXCELLENCE AWARDS 2025

Photography and Videography, Livestreaming ’ _ Client: Marina Bay Sands

Scope of work: Event Management, Multimedia
Creation, Photography and Videography

CHILDAID 2024 BROUGHT AUGMENTED REALITY TO THE LIVE

THEATRE EXPERIENCE -
: = ' VENUS VS MARS PROGRAMME WITH MS GRACE FU, Minister for .
Client: SPH Media Limited ™ - ) Sustainability and the Environment and DR TAN SEE LENG, Minister
Scope of work: Event Management, Multimedia Creation for Manpower and Minister-in-Charge of Energy and Science &
and Videography Technology in the Ministry of Trade and Industry
18 NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED €lient: Figgples Action Party” ) . ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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PRODUCTION AND EVENT
MANAGEMENT

e
JHE
: ""'I' A \ CHINATOWN MID-AUTUMN FESTIVAL LIGHT-UP 2024
CAPITALAND INVESTOR DAY 2024 R X ) . -
Client: Kreta Ayer-Kim Seng Constituency Office
Client: CapitalLand Investment Limited Scope of work: Event Management and Show Production
Scope of work: Event Management, Multimedia Creation,

Photography and Videography

B 4 ’ . e AV I|
i +5% iy - A

RWS HALLOWEEN HORROR NIGHTS 12

Client: Resorts World Sentosa
Scope of work: Multimedia Production

Client: National Heritage Board - Speak
Mandarin Campaign
Scope of work: Event Conceptualisation
and Management,
Artiste Engagement,
Photography and
Videography

RWS LED CHRISTMAS TREE

Client: Resorts World Sentosa

Scope of work: Multimedia Production
RWS NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION

Client: Resorts World Sentosa
Scope of work: Multimedia Production

SCHOOL TOURS |

Client: Ministry of Education

Scope of work: Content Creation, Event
Management and Artiste

Engagement

20 NOONTALK MEDIA I.IMITEIj ; . ANNUAL REPORT 2025 yal
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HIGHLIGHTS FY2025 T ol gt S HIGHLIGHTS FY2025
PRODUCTION AND EVENT R Yam | Sk
MANAGEMENT I & = : : g5l ¥ _I JEWEL CNY 2025 LO-HEI CELEBRATION
g _ = = LEWEias  Client: Jewel Changi Airport Development Pte Ltd
- i 1 i - - 3 _ - - ) Scope of work: E\rlggtlx;r:]agementand Show
il B L
‘ HOLISTIC WAY CNY REUNION CELEBRATION 2025 & e
Client: JR Life Sciences Pte Ltd (Holistic Way) ¢ < F
Scope of work: Event Management, Photography : | ) .
and Videography g A | AR 2 1 e

N

PUBLIC SERVICE CAMPAIGN VIDEOS FOR SINGAPORE CHINESE CULTURAL CENTRE (SCCC)

Client: Oak3 Films

Scope of work: Video Production JEWEL DISNEY CRUISE LINE MEET & GREET
HOLISTIC WAY MOTHER'S DAY MEDIA EVENT 3 -
o . 1 Client: Jewel Changi Airport Development Pte Ltd

Client: JR Life Sciences Pte Ltd Scope of work: Event Management
(Holistic Way)
Scope of work: Key Opinion Leader Engagement

* ' HONOR OF KINGS INVITATIONAL SEASON 2

Client: 10 Esports
Scope of work: Event Management

(Player Flight Services) ANNUAL REPORT 2025




BUSINESS BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS FY2025 HIGHLIGHTS FY2025

ARTISTE & TALENT IEM | OFFICIAL STORE ||7
MANAGEMENT ENEERHER 60ml

CULTIVATING TALENT, CREATING IMPACT

As a media and entertainment company, we are focused on nurturing our artistes by providing tailored guidance and
representation to strengthen their market presence. Over the year, our artistes created measurable impact for leading
brands through endorsements and high-profile event appearances, enhancing both their visibility and our reputation
within the industry.

They further extended their influence by embracing emerging formats such as livestreaming and short-form content,
while also contributing to socially impactful projects, lending their voices and presence to campaigns that champion
meaningful causes.

T T LET 1]

iy _--‘;i e ! : e ‘ ‘ . ’
KIMBERLY CHIA ZONG ZIJIE KEVIN TAN AND ANGEL LIM
Ambassador for [EM Ambassador for Holistic Way Friend of Holistic Way

= = o

Aligned with our commitment to promoting the Chinese language, our artistes actively supported initiatives such as
curated school tours and My Story competition, organised in collaboration with the Speak Mandarin Campaign. Through
these efforts, they inspired young audiences to embrace the language and cultivate a deeper appreciation of Chinese,
while underscoring the Group’s dedication to creating meaningful community impact.

XU BIN
! . ANGEL LIM
KEVIN TAN for Goldheart X Gu Fa Jin Campaign for Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Campaign
Campaign Engagement for Osim

YANG YAN and

PENTOR JEERAPAT
were finalists
in iQiyi's survival
competition
Starlight Boys

debut single, | Think That I Like You,
released on Valentine's Day 2025

ANGEL LIM
Campaign Engagement for Osim ANNUAL REPORT 2025 25
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ARTISTE & TALENT
MANAGEMENT

:'.'.
"fl R @ .
‘- ‘ : *j
KEVIN TAN XU BIN AND ZONG ZIJIE

in China-produced web drama «/NE&L T IR0 co-starred as the main leads in Mediacorp’s drama <« MLIAK»

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
for Shopee Live

DDOVNOATIVULR
rnNUYULCLALLY L

ZONG ZIJIE ANNUAL REPORT 2025 27

-
one of the main cast members in the long-form drama Provocative by Mediacorp
—EETEA W _L] 3
s F s, b
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ARTISTE & TALENT
MANAGEMENT

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTE
at Hugo x Racing Bull Capsule

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES WITH

SOUTH KOREAN ACTOR LEE CHAE-MIN
at the Grand Opening of MLB Flagship Store

E NALIVING VIM WWWDLRLE OC

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
at the Opening of Tom Ford Store

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
at 45R Boutique Opening

——— NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES —
at Burberry Beauty Goddess Intense
Fragrance Launch

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
at Clarins 9th Generation Double Serum Launch

28 NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2025 29
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ARTISTE & TALENT
MANAGEMENT

W YUEWEN ViGER

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
at Onitsuka Tiger Denivita Event

NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTES
at Tommy Hilfiger X Mercedes
AMG F1 Pop-up

=

YANG YAN, ANGEL LIM AND BRYAN KOK
at Yuewen Global IP Awards 2024

30 NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED NOONTALK MEDIA ARTISTE
at Tommy Hilfiger Spring 2025 X
SailGP Event

BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS FY2025

STAR AWARDS 2025: Featuring awards winners and nominees XU BIN, ZONG ZIJIE,
DAMIEN TEO, KEVIN TAN AND ELVIS SHI, together with DASMOND KOH as guest
presenter for the Best-Radio Programme award

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 31
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENESE

Selling and distribution expenses reduced by S$56,000,
or 43%, in FY2025, mainly due to lower distribution and
marketing fees for the film product.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses registered a significant decline of
S$1 million, or 93%, to S$81,000, primarily due to minimal
film product impairment charges recognised during the
year, compared with the substantial write-offs in FY2024.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs saw a 40% reduction to $$24,000. This was
attributed to the full repayment of bank borrowings during
the financial period, which led to lower interest expenses.

LOSS AFTER TAX

In FY2025, the Group's total comprehensive loss declined
significantly to S$1.8 million, marking a S$2 million, or
53%, improvement compared with FY2024. This notable
reduction reflects the management’s effective operational
strategies and successful efforts to enhance profitability
amidst a dynamic business landscape.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current Assets

As of 30 June 2025, the Group's total current assets stood
at S$2.14 million, a decrease of S$1.2 million compared
with S$3.34 million as of 30 June 2024.

The decrease was attributed to a reduction in cash and
cash equivalents of $$0.93 million, contract costs of S$0.15
million and contract assets of S$0.1 million, reflecting a
lower number of ongoing projects at the financial year-
end. Additionally, film product decreased by S$0.15
million, driven by amortisation and impairment charges of
S$$66,000 and S$81,000, respectively.

The decrease was partially offset by an increase of S$0.1
million in trade and other receivables, mainly due to higher
trade receivables arising from a project invoice.

Non-current Assets

As of 30 June 2025, the Group's total non-current assets
stood at $$0.27 million, a decrease of S$%$0.63 million
compared with S$0.9 million as of 30 June 2024. The decline
was attributed to the depreciation of plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and finance lease receivable.

Current Liabilities
The Group's current liabilities stood at S$2.12 million as of

30 June 2025, a decrease of S$0.51 million from S$2.63
million recorded on 30 June 2024. This decline was driven

FINANCIAL
REVIEW

by a decrease of S$0.25 million in contract liabilities and a
decrease of $S$0.37 million in lease liabilities, mainly due
to monthly lease payments made for the office and studio
premises and a retail outlet, partially offset by the addition
of a new office premises during the financial year and
repayment of bank loans.

The decrease was partially offset by an increase of S$0.18
million in trade and other payables, comprising higher
trade payables of S$$0.52 million, accrued operating
expenses of $S$95,000 and net output tax of S$4,000, which
were offset by lower accrued staff costs of S$0.2 million
and other payables of S$0.24 million.

Non-current Liabilities

As of 30 June 2025, the Group's lease liabilities decreased
by S$78,000 from S$0.22 million on 30 June 2024 to S$0.14
million. This reduction was due to monthly lease payments
for the office and studio premises, and a retail outlet,
partially offset by the addition of a new office premises
during the financial year.

The Group’s borrowings increased by S$0.55 million as
a result of a director's loan to the Company during the
financial year. The loan is unsecured, interest-free, and
repayable on demand from 1 July 2026 onwards.

Shareholder Equity

Shareholder equity decreased by S$1.8 million from S$1.4
million as at 30 June 2024 to negative $S$0.4 million as at 30
June 2025, due to losses incurred in FY2025.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

As at 30 June 2025, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounted to $$0.69 million, compared with S$1.61 million
as at 30 June 2024. The decrease of $$0.93 million arose
from the following:

Operating activities utilised a net S$0.9 million in cash,
primarily due to net losses offset by favourable working
capital inflows, including reductions in contract assets and
costs, and an increase in trade payables.

Net investing activities generated S$0.16 million, solely
from finance lease receipts during the year.

Net cash outflows from financing activities totalled
$$182,000, comprising lease and loan repayments as
well as interest, partially offset by an inflow from a new
director’s loan.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and management are committed to ensuring that high standards of corporate
governance are practised throughout the Group as a fundamental part of its responsibilities to protect and enhance
shareholders’ value and the financial performance of the Group.

This report (“Annual Report”) outlines the Group's corporate governance practices that were in place during the
financial year ended 30 June 2025 (“FY2025"), with specific reference made to the Principles of Code of Corporate
Governance 2018 (“Code 2018") and the disclosure guide developed by SGX-ST in January 2015 (the “Guide”) and the
new requirements implemented by the SGX-ST taking into effect from 11 January 2023, where applicable to the Group.
The Group strives to comply with the provisions set out in Code 2018 and the Guide, and where it has deviated from
the Code 2018 and/or the Guide, appropriate explanations are provided.

The Group also ensures that all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of
Singapore (“Securities and Futures Act”) and the SGX-ST Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist (“Catalist Rules”),
are duly complied with.

General
(a)  Has the Company complied with all the principles and provisions of the new Code?

If not, please state the specific deviations and alternative corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company in lieu of the recommendations in the Code.

The Company has complied with the principles and provisions as set out in Code 2018 and the Guide, where
applicable.

Appropriate explanations have been provided in the relevant sections below where there are deviations from
Code 2018 and/or the Guide.

(b) In what respect do these alternative corporate governance practices achieve the objectives of the principles
and conform to the provisions of the Code?

Not applicable. The Company did not adopt any alternative corporate governance practices.

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’'s Conduct of Affairs

Principle 1: The Company is headed by an effective Board which is collectively responsible and works with
Management for the long-term success of the Company.

Directors’ duties and responsibilities

All Directors objectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as fiduciaries and make decisions in the best
interests of the Group at all times. The Board has established a code of conduct and ethics, sets the desired
organisational culture and ensures proper accountability within the Group. The Board has clear policies and
procedures for dealing with conflicts of interest. Where a Director faces a conflict of interest, he or she will recuse
himself or herself from the relevant discussions and decisions.

The Board is entrusted to lead and oversee the Company, with the fundamental principle of acting in the best
interests of the Company. In addition to its statutory duties, the Board oversees the management of the Company
(the “Management”) and affairs of the Group’s business and oversees processes for evaluating the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group'’s internal controls and risk management systems. It focuses on strategies and policies, with
particular attention paid to growth and financial performance. The Board works with the Management to achieve this,
and the Management remains accountable to the Board. Each individual Director has objectively discharged his duties
and responsibilities at all times as fiduciaries in the interests of the Company.
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As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises five (5) members as follows:

Composition of the Board

Name of Director Designation Date of Appointment
Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") 1 December 2014

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Director 27 October 2022

Mr Zheng Xianbin (“Jed Tay") Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer (“CO0Q") 27 October 2022

Mr Soh Gim Teik Lead Independent Director 27 October 2022

Mr Cruz Teng Independent Director 27 October 2022

Induction, Training and Development

The Company provides a comprehensive orientation programme to familiarise the new Directors with the Group's
businesses, accounting control policies, procedures and internal control policies and procedures, including an overview
of the written policies and procedures in relation to the financial, operational and compliance controls; as well as the
Group's history, core values, strategic direction, and industry-specific knowledge to assimilate them into their new roles.

The Directors also met with the Management team to better understand the Group’s business operations.

Newly appointed Directors who do not have prior experience as a Director of a public-listed company in Singapore will
attend the relevant training courses organised by the Singapore Institute of Directors pursuant to Catalist Rule 406(3)(a)
and Practice Note 4D of the Catalist Rules within one year from the date of their appointment, as well as other courses
relating to accounting, legal and industry-specific knowledge, where relevant, organised by other training institutions, in
connection with their duties, and such trainings will be funded by the Group.

There was no new Director appointed during FY2025.

The Directors are updated regularly when there are changes to the Catalist Rules, Code of Corporate Governance,
insider trading and the key changes in the relevant regulatory requirements and international financial reporting
standards and the relevant laws and regulations to facilitate the effective discharge of their fiduciary duties as Board
or Board Committees members. Regulatory updates issued by the SGX-ST and Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority relevant to the Directors are circulated to the Board by the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
would also inform the Directors of upcoming conferences and seminars relevant to their roles as Directors of the
Company. The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and training to update themselves in the discharge of
Directors’ duties and responsibilities at the expense of the Company's established limit. Changes to regulations and
accounting standards are monitored closely by the Management. In addition, the Management will regularly update
and familiarise the Directors with the Group's business activities during Board and Board Committees’ meetings or
when necessary. The external auditors brief the Audit Committee and the Board on changes and amendments to the
accounting standards.

All the Directors have completed the mandatory sustainability training courses to equip themselves with the basic
knowledge on sustainability matters.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Board has put in place internal guidelines for matters reserved for the Board's approval. Specifically, matters and
transactions that require the Board'’s approval include, among others, the following:

° release of the half-year and full-year results announcements;

° annual report and financial statements;

° annual budgets and financial plans of the Group;

° business, strategy and capital expenditure budgets;

° convening of shareholders’ meetings, circulars to shareholders and related announcements to be submitted to
the SGX-ST;
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° overall corporate strategy and changes to the corporate structure;

° acquisitions, investments and disposals of assets exceeding a certain threshold;

° share issuances;

° recommendation/declaration of dividends;

° appointment of Directors and key executives, Company Secretary of the Company and terms of reference for

the Board Committees;

° review of Directors and key executives’ performance and remuneration packages;

° interested person transactions;

° material regulatory matters or litigation; and

° compliance matters associated with the Catalist Rules, Securities and Futures Act or other relevant laws and
regulations.

Board Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board is supported by three board committees, namely the
Audit Committee (“AC”), Nominating Committee (“NC") and the Remuneration Committee (“RC") (collectively “Board
Committees”). As the Board retains ultimate responsibility for all decisions, all matters discussed at the Board
Committee meetings are presented and reported to the Board for approval prior to its implementation. The Board
Committees function within clearly defined terms of reference and operating procedures, and they also play an
important role in ensuring good corporate governance in the Company and within the Group. The Board reviews
the terms of reference of the Board Committees on a regular basis to enhance the effectiveness of these Board
Committees. The terms of reference of the respective Board Committees, as well as other relevant information on the
Board Committees, can be found in the subsequent sections of this Annual Report.

The compositions of the Board Committees as at the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Composition of the Board Committees

AC NC RC
Chairman Mr Soh Gim Teik Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda Mr Cruz Teng
Member Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda Mr Soh Gim Teik Mr Soh Gim Teik
Member Mr Cruz Teng Mr Cruz Teng Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
Member - Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng -
Notes:

(1) The AC comprised three (3) members, all of whom (including the Chairman) are independent.
(2)  The NC comprised four (4) members, majority of whom (including the Chairman) are independent.

(3)  The RC comprised three (3) members, all of whom (including the Chairman) are independent.
Board and Board Committees Meetings

The Board convenes at least half-yearly and, on an adhoc basis, if required, as deemed appropriate by the Board
Members, to review and discuss the performance of the Group, to approve the half-year and full-year results
announcements as well as to oversee the business affairs of the Group.

The calendar of all the Board and Board Committees meetings are scheduled in advance. The Board is free to seek
clarification and information from the Management on all matters within their purview. Ad-hoc meetings shall be
convened as may be necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise. The Constitution of the
Company and terms of reference for each individual Board Committee allow the Directors to participate in Board and
Board Committees meetings to be held by means of telephonic, video conferencing or other communication facilities
to communicate with each other simultaneously and instantaneously. Important matters concerning the Group are also
put to the Board for its decision by way of written resolutions.
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The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during FY2025 and the attendance of each board member
of such meetings are set out below:

Attendance of Board and Board Committees

Board AC NC RC
Number of Meetings Held 3 3 1 1
Name of Directors Number of Meetings Attended
Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng 3 3* 1 1*
Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda 3 3 1 1
Mr Zheng Xianbin 3 3* 1% 1%
Mr Soh Gim Teik 3 1 1
Mr Cruz Teng 3 1 1

* by invitation

The Board meets on a half-yearly basis and as and when circumstances require. The Board also holds informal board
and board committee meetings from time to time to discuss on various matters of the Company. The Company’s
Constitution allows for meetings to be held through telephone and/or videoconference.

Multiple Board Representation

Directors with multiple Board representations shall ensure that sufficient time and attention are given to the affairs of
the Company. The Board currently does not place limits on the number of board appointments for Directors (see Page
11).

Board Information

The Management provides the Board with key information that is complete, adequate and in advance of meetings and
on an on-going basis to enable the Directors to make timely decisions, effectively discharge their duties and make a
balanced and informed assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Key information comprises, among others, properly organised board papers (with background or explanatory
information relating to the matters brought before the Board, where necessary), updates to Group operations and the
markets in which the Group operates, budgets and/or forecasts, management accounts, external audit reports and
reports on ongoing or planned corporate actions. Where the situation requires, Directors are entitled to request for
additional information from Management and such information are provided to the Directors in a timely manner.

Board’'s Access

The Board has separate and independent access to the Senior Management team, external advisers (where necessary,
at the Company’s expense) and the Company Secretary at all times.

The Company Secretary and/or her representative(s) shall attend all Board and Board Committees meetings. The
responsibilities of the Company Secretary include advising the Board on governance matters, facilitating the process of
appointment of new Directors and assisting the Chairman of the Board in ensuring information flows within the Board
and its Board Committees and between the Management and the Directors. The Company Secretary will also provide
the Board with updates on regulations and legislations that the Company is required to comply with, as required. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is to be decided by the Board as a whole.

Where decisions to be taken by the Board require specialised knowledge or expert opinion, the Directors may direct

the Company to appoint external advisers to enable the Directors to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The cost
of which will be borne by the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 37



CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Board Composition and Guidance

Principle 2: The Board has an appropriate level of independence and diversity of thought and background, in its
composition to enable it to make decisions in the best interests of the Company.

Board Composition - Independence and Diversity
As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company is in compliance with Provision 2 of Code 2018.

The Board comprises five (5) members, out of which two (2) are Executive Directors and three (3) are Independent
Directors. Independent Directors make up majority of the Board. The Chairman and majority members of the Board
Committees are Independent Directors.

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda - Independent Chairman

Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng - Executive Director & CEO
Mr Zheng Xianbin - Executive Director & COO

Mr Soh Gim Teik - Lead Independent Director

Mr Cruz Teng - Independent Director

The Chairman of the Board (the “Board Chairman”) is an Independent Director and is not part of the Management
team. All Directors are also not related to each other.

The Board assesses the independence of each Director in accordance with the guidance provided in Code 2018 as
well as Rule 406(3)(d) of the Catalist Rules. An Independent Director is one who is independent in conduct, character
and judgement and has no relationship with the Company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its
officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of his/her independent business
judgement in the best interests of the Company.

On an annual basis, each Independent Director shall be required to complete a “Confirmation of Independence” form
to confirm his/her independence. The said form was drawn up based on the definitions and guidelines set forth in the
Code 2018. The Directors shall be required to disclose to the Board any such relationship as and when it arises, and
the Board will state the reason(s) if it determines that a Director is independent notwithstanding the existence of a
relationship or circumstances which may appear relevant to the Board's determination.

The NC shall examine the different relationships identified by Code 2018 that might impair each Independent Director’s
independence and objectivity, and conclude that all the Independent Directors can exercise independent business
judgment in the Company's and its shareholders’ best interests.

The Independent Directors have confirmed their independence in accordance with the Code 2018 and Rule 406(3)(d) of
the Catalist Rules.

The NC is of the view that the Independent Directors collectively form a strong and independent presence on our
Board, capable of exercising objective judgement on corporate affairs independently from the Executive Directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NC has reviewed the independence status of the Independent Directors and
is satisfied that Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda, Mr Soh Gim Teik and Mr Cruz Teng are independent in accordance with
Provision 2.1 of the Code 2018 and Rule 406(3)(d) of the Catalist Rules.

Each member of the NC has abstained from deliberations in respect of the assessment of his/her own independence.
Independent Directors Serving Beyond Nine (9) Years

There is currently no Independent Director who has served on the Board for more than nine (9) years.

Independent Directors

As the Board Chairman is Independent, the Company is not required to comply with Provision 2.2 of Code 2018.

Notwithstanding, the Company has three (3) Independent Directors and Independent Directors make up a majority of
the Board.
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Mr Soh Gim Teik has also been appointed as the Lead Independent Director of the Company and makes himself
available to shareholders if their concerns are not resolved through the Chairman, CEO and/or Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ"), or where such contact is considered inappropriate or inadequate.

The Lead Independent Director makes himself available to shareholders at the Company’s general meetings, and he
can be contacted via email: AC_Chairman@noontalk.com

The Lead Independent Director has the authority and is responsible for calling and leading meetings of the
Independent Directors when necessary and appropriate. Led by the Lead Independent Director, the Independent
Directors will communicate regularly without the presence of the Executive Director(s) and Management to discuss
matters such as board processes, corporate governance initiatives, succession and leadership development planning,
and remuneration matters. Feedback on the outcomes of these discussions will be provided to the Non-Executive
Chairman and/or the Board after such meetings.

The Lead Independent Director also acts as a sounding board to the CEO on matters of the Company's business
strategies and investment opportunities. The Lead Independent Director represents the Independent Directors in
responding to shareholders’ questions and comments directed to the Independent Directors as a group and at General
Meetings of the Company.

Non-Executive Directors

To facilitate a more effective review of Management, the Independent Directors will communicate, on an ad-hoc basis,
without the presence of the Management and Executive Director(s), to discuss Management's performance and any
matters of concern.

The current Board composition complies with Provision 2.3 of the Code 2018, where Non-Executive Independent
Directors make up a majority of the Board.

Board Size and Diversity

The size and composition of the Board and Board Committees are reviewed at least annually, including taking
into consideration the Company’s expansion plans at the point of review, to ensure that the Board and the Board
Committees have the appropriate mix of expertise, skills, knowledge, experience and gender diversity for effective
decision-making.

The Board is committed to ensuring diversity on the Board and Board Committees, including but not limited
to appropriate balance and mix of skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age and the core competencies of
accounting,finance, corporate governance, media and corporate communications, business and management
experience, industry knowledge, technical skills and know-how and strategic planning.

The Board's guideline in identifying Director nominees is primarily to have an appropriate mix of members with
complementary skills, core competencies and experience for the Company, regardless of gender. The Board is mindful
that diversity is not specific to gender or certain personal attributes but would extend to sectorial diversity, diversity as
to experience and skills across various disciplines and would strive to ensure the diversity would enhance the long-term
success of the Company.

The Company's Board Diversity Policy (“Policy”) was approved by the Board on 18 August 2023. The Policy addresses
diversity in terms of experience, skills, gender, age, tenure, and qualities, as well as any other relevant aspects of
diversity. The objective of the policy is to guard against groupthink and foster robust and constructive debate, leading
to better decision-making. This ensures that the Board composition is adequate to support the Company’s needs in the
short and long term.

As at the end of FY2025 and the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises four (4) male Directors and one (1)
female Director, which accounts for a 20% female representation. The Board also includes Directors with diverse core
competencies, professional and industry knowledge across age groups of 35 to 71, thus retaining diverse age groups
participation on the Board. Having Board Members from different generations allows the Company to retain diverse
age groups' participation on the Board to leverage the wisdom of experience and enhance its ability to navigate the
challenging and disruptive business environment. The Company has met its objectives in ensuring a diversity of age
and gender on the Board.
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Each Director has been appointed based on the strength of his or her calibre, experience, grasp of corporate strategy
and potential to contribute to the Company and its businesses. The goal is to cultivate a Board with a wide range of
perspectives and experiences that contribute to the success of the Company and steer the Company forward.

The NC has assessed the current level of diversity on the Board to be satisfactory and given the current size of the
Board and the nature of the business at present, the Board does not propose to set specific diversity targets or
concrete timelines for achieving board diversity targets. Instead, the Company takes the approach that maintaining
a satisfactory level of diversity is an ongoing process which may need to be updated as the business of the Group
develops.

The NC, having conducted its reviews, was satisfied that current Board members consist of a group with diverse
professional expertise and possess the relevant core competencies in areas such as accounting, finance, media
and corporate communications, leadership & strategic planning, business management and industry knowledge. In
particular, the Executive Directors of the Company, possess good industry knowledge while the Independent Directors,
who are professionals in their own fields, can take a broader view of the Group’s activities, contribute their valuable
experiences and provide independent judgment during Board deliberations.

The Board, taking into account the view of the NC, considers that the current composition of the Board and
Board Committees comprise a balance and mix of skills, experiences and individual attributes which promote
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and that of the Board Committees, and the current size of the Board is
appropriate in leading and governing the Company effectively considering the scope and nature of its operation. The
Board met its objectives in ensuring diverse skills and experience given that the existing board members comprise of
Directors with a mix of expertise and knowledge and diverse background.

The key information of the Directors, including the academic and professional qualifications, shareholding interests in
the Company, Board Committees served on, first appointment date, directorships or chairmanship both present and
those held over the past five (5) years in listed companies and their principal commitments are set out in pages 10 to
12, 35, 36, and 128 to 133.

Regular Meetings for Independent and Non-Executive Directors

Where appropriate, the Independent and Non-Executive Director(s) meet periodically without the presence of
the Executive Director(s) to discuss concerns or matters, such as the effectiveness of the Management and provide
feedback to the Board, as appropriate, after such meetings. Independent Directors fulfil a pivotal role in corporate
accountability. Their presence is particularly important as they provide unbiased and independent views, advice and
judgement to take care of the interests, not only of the Company but also of the shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the many communities with which the Company conducts business with.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There is a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and Management, and
no one individual has unfettered power of decision-making.

Separation of the Roles of Chairman and CEO

The Chairman and the CEO are separate persons. Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda is the Chairman of the Board, and Mr
Dasmond Koh Chin Eng is the CEO. The Company has also appointed Mr Soh Gim Teik as the Lead Independent
Director.

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda and Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng are not related to each other and do not have any business
relationship with each other.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separate and distinct, each having their own areas of responsibilities. The
distinctive separation of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO ensures an appropriate balance of power,
increased accountability and greater capacity for the Board to exercise independent decision-making. There is a clear
division of responsibilities, as set out in writing and agreed by the Board, between the leadership of the Board and the
executives responsible for managing the Company’s business.
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The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness and integrity of the governance process. She exercises
control over the quality, quantity and timeliness of information flow between the Board and the Management and
effective communication with the shareholders. Her responsibilities in respect of the Board proceedings include:

(a) in consultation with the CEO, setting the agenda (with the assistance of the Company Secretary) and ensuring
that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items;

(b)  ensuring that all agenda items are adequately and openly debated at Board meetings;
() ensuring that all Directors receive complete, adequate and timely information; and

(d)  assisting in ensuring that the Company complies with the Code 2018 and maintains high standards of corporate
governance.

The CEO is responsible for the overall management, operations, strategic planning and business expansion of the
Group. He oversees the execution of the Group’s corporate and business strategies and the day-to-day operations
of the Group. His performance and appointment to the Board will be reviewed periodically by the NC, and his
remuneration package is reviewed by the RC.

The Board is of the view that there is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO, which
ensures that there is an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and sufficient capacity of the Board for
independent decision-making.

Board Membership

Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
taking into account the need for progressive renewal of the Board.

Nominating Committee (“NC") Role
The NC is guided by key terms of reference approved by the Board as follows:

(a) to develop and maintain a formal and transparent process for the selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors (including alternate Directors, if applicable);

(b) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to (i) the review of board succession plans
for Directors, in particular, the Chairman and CEO, (ii) the review of training and professional development
programmes for the Board, and (iii) the appointment and re-appointment of the Directors (including alternate
Directors, if applicable);

(c) to ensure that the Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at least once every three (3)
years;

(d) to review and determine annually, and as and when circumstances require, if a Director is independent, in
accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance and any other salient factors;

(e) to review the composition of the Board annually to ensure that the Board and Board committees comprise
Directors who, as a group provide an appropriate balance and diversity of skills, expertise, gender and
knowledge of the Company and provide core competencies such as accounting or finance, business or
management experience, industry knowledge, strategic planning experience and customer-based experience
and knowledge;

(f) to establish guidelines on what a reasonable and maximum number of directorships and principal commitments
for each Director (or type of Director) shall be;

(8) where a Director has multiple board representations, to decide whether the Director is able to and has been
adequately carrying out his duties as Director, taking into consideration the Director's number of listed company
board representations and other principal commitments;

(h)  to review and approve any new employment of persons related to the Directors and/or Substantial
Shareholders, as well as the proposed terms of their employment;
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(i) to ensure that the Directors disclose their relationships with the Company, its related corporations, its
substantial shareholders or its officers, if any, which may affect their independence and to review such
disclosures from the Directors and highlight these to the Board as required; and

() to act on the results of any performance evaluation of the Board and propose, where appropriate, new
members to be appointed to the Board or seek the resignation of Directors.

In addition, the NC will make recommendations to the Board on the development of a process for evaluating
the performance of the Board, Board Committees and Directors. In this regard, the NC will decide how the Board’s
performance will be evaluated and propose objective performance criteria addressing how the Board has enhanced
long-term shareholder value.

The NC will also implement a process to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and of the Board Committees,
as well as to assess the contribution of the Chairman and each individual Director to the Board's overall effectiveness.
The Chairman will act on the results of the performance evaluation of the Board and, in consultation with NC, propose,
where appropriate, new members to be appointed to the Board or seek the resignation of Directors. Each member
of the NC is required to abstain from voting, approving or making a recommendation on any resolutions of the NC in
which he/she has a conflict of interest in the subject matter under consideration.

Nominating Committee Composition

The Board has established the NC, which comprises three (3) Independent Directors and one (1) Executive Director who
have been tasked with the authority and responsibility to devise an appropriate process to review and evaluate the
performance of the Board as a whole and each of the Board Committees.

The Chairman of the NC is Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda, who is an Independent Director. The composition of the NC is as
follows:

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda (Chairman)
Mr Soh Gim Teik

Mr Cruz Teng

Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng

In accordance with the terms of reference of the NG, in the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman of the NC has a
second or casting vote.

Director Appointment and Re-appointment

The NC conducts an annual review of the balance, diversity and size of the Board to determine whether any changes
are required in relation to the Board composition. Where new Directors are required, the NC will identify the key
attributes that an incoming Director should have, which is based on a matrix of the attributes of the existing Board
and the requirements of the Company. After the Board endorses the key attributes, the NC taps into the resources of
the Directors’ contacts and/or engages external professional bodies or consultants to source for potential candidates.
The NC will interview the candidates, and shortlisted candidates are recommended to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Selection and Appointment of New Directors

1. Determine selection criteria ° In consultation with the Board, identify the current needs and gaps
in competencies at the Board level, which could be addressed to
complement and strengthen the Board.

° Determine the competencies required for the new appointment after
such deliberation.

2. Candidate search ° Consider candidates proposed by the Directors, key management
personnel or recommendations from professional bodies. The NC may
also engage external search consultants where necessary.

3. Assess shortlisted candidates | e Lead by the NC Chairman, meet and interview the shortlisted
candidates to assess their suitability.

4, Propose recommendations ° Make recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval.
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Re-election of Incumbent Directors

1. Assess incumbent Director ° Assess the performance of the Director in accordance with the
performance criteria approved by the Board.

° Consider the current needs of the Board.
2. Propose re-appointment ° Recommend the re-appointment of the Director to the Board for its
of Director consideration and approval, subject to its satisfactory assessment.

After reviewing and considering the NC's recommendations, the Board will make the decision to appoint the new
Director and/or propose the re-election of the incumbent Director for shareholders’ approval, subject to the Director's
consent to act.

Pursuant to Rule 720(4) of the Catalist Rules, all Directors must submit themselves for re-nomination and re-
appointment at least once every three (3) years. Pursuant to Regulation 110 of the Company’s Constitution, at each
Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company, at least one-third of the Directors are required to retire by rotation
and submit themselves for re-election at regular intervals, and at least once every three (3) years. In addition, pursuant
to Regulation 114 of the Company's Constitution, any new Directors appointed during the financial year, either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director, are required to submit themselves for re-election at the next AGM.

On the nomination of re-election of retiring Directors, the NC will assess the performance and contribution of the
Director and, subject to a satisfactory assessment, will recommend the proposed re-appointment of the Directors to
the Board for its consideration and approval. The NC has recommended that Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda and Mr Zheng
Xianbin (“Retiring Directors”) be nominated for re-election pursuant to Regulation 110 at the forthcoming AGM.

Each Retiring Director has abstained from deliberations on his/her own nomination for re-election. All Retiring Directors
have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Board has accepted the NC's recommendation and the proposed resolutions on the re-election of the Retiring
Directors will be tabled at the upcoming AGM for shareholders’ approval. Please refer to the Notice of AGM for the
resolutions relating to the respective re-elections and details of the Retiring Directors, including the information
required under Appendix 7F of the Catalist Rules, are disclosed in pages 128 to 133 of this Annual Report.

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda will, upon re-election as a Director, remain as an Independent Director and will continue to
serve as the Board Chairman, Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees of the Company. Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda , being the Chairman of the NC, had abstained from making any
recommendation and/or participating in any deliberation of the NC in respect of her own assessment, contributions
and re-election as a Director.

Mr Zheng Xianbin will, upon re-election as a Director, remain as an Executive Director, and will continue to serve as the
Chief Operating Officer (“COQ") of the Company.

The NC conducts an annual review of the independence of the Directors, having regard to the circumstances set
forth in Provision 2.1 of the Code 2018 and Rule 406(3)(d) of the Catalist Rules. Sufficient information will accompany
all resolutions relating to the Directors’ appointments and re-appointments to allow the Board to make informed
decisions.

The Board, with the concurrence of the NC, has also considered Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda, Mr Soh Gim Teik and Mr Cruz
Teng to be independent for the purposes of Rule 704(7) of the Catalist Rules.

Multiple Directorships

The NC is responsible for reviewing the ability of Directors to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and, taking into consideration their multiple directorships and significant principal commitments.

The NC requires each Director to declare any new directorships or significant principal commitments during the year
to facilitate the ongoing monitoring of possible conflicts of interest, time commitment, attendance and contributions to
the Company. At this moment, the Board has not imposed any limit as it is of the view that the number of directorships
and principal commitments should be considered on a case-by-case basis, as a person’s availability and capacity may
be affected by different factors. The NC also does not wish to omit from considering, outstanding individuals who,
despite the demands on their time, have the ability to participate and contribute well as members of the Board. The NC
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and the Board are satisfied that the current directorships and commitments of the Directors have not hindered them
from carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company, and each of them has adequately fulfilled his/her duties
since their appointments.

Specific considerations in assessing the capacity of Directors include:

° Their expected and/or competing time commitments, including whether they are in a full-time or part-time
employment capacity;

° Geographical location of Directors;

° Size and composition of the Board;

° Nature and scope of the Group's operations and size; and

° Capacity, complexity and expectations of the other listed directorships and principal commitments held.

Currently, only one (1) Independent Director of the Company holds other directorships in public listed companies in
Singapore.

Alternate Directors
The Company does not have any alternate Directors.
Board Performance

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its effectiveness as a whole, and that of its board
committees and individual Directors.

Performance Criteria and Process for Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Board
As recommended by Provision 5.1 of Code 2018, the NC has implemented a self-assessment process requiring
each Director to assess the performance and effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and the

contributions of the Chairman and each individual Director to the Board's effectiveness for each financial year.

Table 5 sets out the performance criteria, recommended by the NC and approved by the Board, to evaluate the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole and assess the contribution of each Director.

Performance Criteria

Board Individual Directors
1. Size and composition 1. Commitment of time
2. Access to information 2. Knowledge and abilities
3. Board processes 3. Teamwork
4. Strategic planning 4. Independence and objectivity
5. Board accountability 5. Integrity
6. Succession planning 6. Overall effectiveness
7. Board effectiveness in its monitoring role and its | 7. Track record in good decision making
attainment of strategic and long-term objectives . .
8. Perspectives on competition
8. Board Committees’ performance in relation to
discharging their responsibilities set out in their
respective terms of reference
9. Board stewardship
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Disclosure of Assessment of the Board, Board Committees and Each Director

The board assessment questionnaire has been developed for the Board to implement a formal annual process to
assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each of the Board Committees and each
individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company Secretary will collate the results, and the assessment summary will be presented to the Chairman of
the Board and the NC for review and collective discussion with the other board members to address or recommend
any areas for improvement and follow-up actions, if any. The appraisal process focuses on a set of performance
criteria for the Board, Board Committees and individual Directors, which includes the evaluation of Board's size and
composition, access to information, its processes and accountability, as well as performance in discharging its principal
responsibilities, communication with Key Management Personnel and the Directors’ standards of conduct.

The NC makes recommendations to the Board aimed at helping the Board to discharge its duties effectively. The
Chairman of the Board acts on the results of the performance evaluation and the recommendation of the NC. The NC
has full authority to engage an external facilitator to assist the NC in carrying out the evaluation process, if the need
arises.

The NC has reviewed the overall performance of the Board, Board Committees, and individual Directors for FY2025
and is satisfied that the Board as a whole and the Board Committees have met the performance evaluation criteria
and objectives, and each Director has contributed effectively and demonstrated commitment to their respective roles,
including commitment of time for the Board and Board Committee meetings and any other duties in FY2026.

All NC members have abstained from the voting or review of any matters in connection with the assessment of his/
her performance or re-appointment as a Director of the Company. The Board has considered the use of external
facilitators, and is of the view that there was no need to engage one for FY2025, as the NC maintains a sufficient level
of objectivity in its evaluation process.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 6: There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on Director and Executive
remuneration, and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors and Key Management
Personnel. No Director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee (“RC") Role

The RC is established for the purpose of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent process for fixing the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and key executives and makes recommendations to the Board on all
remuneration matters. The RC has a formal set of terms of reference approved by the Board. A summary of the RC's
key responsibilities includes:

(a) to review and recommend to the Board, in consultation with the Chairman of the Board, for endorsement,
a comprehensive remuneration policy framework and guidelines for the Directors and other persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company (“Key
Management Personnel”);

(b)  to review and recommend to the Board, for endorsement, the specific remuneration packages for each of the
Directors and Key Management Personnel;

() to review and approve the design of all share option plans, performance share plans and/or other equity- based
plans;

(d) in the case of service contracts, to review the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of the
Executive Director's or Key Management Personnel’s contracts of service, to ensure that such contracts of service
contain fair and reasonable termination clauses which are not overly generous, with a view to being fair and
avoiding the reward of poor performance;
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(e) to approve the performance targets for assessing each Key Management Personnel and recommend such
targets, as well as employee-specific remuneration packages for each of such Key Management Personnel, for
endorsement by the Board;

(f) to review and approve any new employment of related employees and the proposed terms of their employment;

(8) to ensure the remuneration policies and systems of the Company, as approved by the Board, support
the Company’s objectives and strategies and are consistently being administered and adhered to within the
Company;

(h)  when necessary, seek expert advice within and/or outside the Company on remuneration matters and ensure
that existing relationships, if any, between the Company and its appointed remuneration consultants will not
affect the independence and objectivity of the remuneration consultants; and

(i) to implement and administer any share incentive scheme(s) adopted by the Company in accordance with the
rules of such scheme and review and approve the granting of share options and/or performance shares to
Directors and employees.

The RC also periodically considers and reviews remuneration packages to ensure their attractiveness, aiming to retain
and motivate the Directors to provide good stewardship of the Company and key executives to successfully manage
the Company, and to align the level and structure of remuneration with the long-term interests and risk policies of
the Company. If a member of the RC has an interest in a matter being reviewed or considered by the RC, he/she will
abstain from voting on the matter.

None of the Directors or Executive Officers has any arrangement or understanding with any of the Substantial
Shareholders, customers, suppliers or other persons pursuant to which such Director or Executive Officer was
appointed as a Director or an Executive Officer.

Remuneration Committee Composition

The Board has established the RC, that comprising three (3) Independent Directors, who have been given the authority
and responsibility to devise an appropriate process and policy for the remuneration packages of Directors and Key
Management Personnel.

The Chairman of the RC is Mr Cruz Teng, who is an Independent Director. The composition of the RC is as follows:

Mr Cruz Teng (Chairman)
Mr Soh Gim Teik
Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda

Termination Clauses

The RC reviews and considers all aspects of remuneration, including the terms of termination. Termination clauses are
included in the service agreements for Key Management Personnel. The RC has reviewed and recommended to the
Board, and the Board concurred that the remuneration and termination clauses are fair and reasonable and are not
overly generous.

There was no termination of any Director or Key Management Personnel during FY2025.
Remuneration Experts

The RC has access to expert professional advice on human resources matters whenever there is a need to consult
externally. In its deliberations, the RC takes into consideration industry practices and norms in compensation, in
addition to the Company's relative performance to the industry and the performance of the individual Directors and
Executive Officers. The Company has not engaged any remuneration consultants for FY2025 and will continue to
monitor the need for engaging external remuneration consultants going forward. Where applicable, the RC will also
review the independence of any external consultants prior to engagement.
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Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and Key Management Personnel are appropriate
and proportionate to the sustained performance and value creation of the Company, taking into
account the strategic objectives of the Company.

Remuneration Framework

The Company advocates a performance-based remuneration system for the Executive Director(s) and Key Management
Personnel that is flexible and responsive to the market. The system comprises a base salary and other fixed
allowances, as well as variable performance bonus structured to link rewards to the sustainable performance and value
creation of the Company, while aligning with the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company has entered into service agreements (the “Service Agreement”) with the CEO and Executive Director,
Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng and the Executive Director and COO, Mr Zheng Xianbin for a period of three (3) years with
effect from the Listing Date (“Initial Period”). Thereafter, the Service Agreement will continue from year to year, unless
otherwise terminated by either party giving not less than six (6) months’ prior written notice to the other after the Initial
Period. Pursuant to the terms of the Service Agreement, both Mr Koh and Mr Zheng's remuneration will comprise
(a) a base salary and (b) an incentive bonus that may be awarded from time to time based on the recommendation
of the RC and subject to the approval of the Board. The Director's fees do not form part of the terms of the Service
Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, there are no existing or proposed service agreements between the Company and any of the
Directors. Additionally, there are no existing or proposed service agreements entered into, or to be entered into, by any
Director with the Company or its subsidiaries that provide for benefits upon termination of employment.

In determining such remuneration packages, the RC will ensure that they are adequate by considering, in consultation
with the Chairman of the Board, the individual's responsibilities, skills, expertise and contribution to the Company's
performance. The RC will also consider whether such packages are competitive and sufficient to enable the Company
to attract and retain the best available executive talent, without being excessively generous and whether they motivate
the Directors to provide effective stewardship of the Company and the Key Management Personnel to successfully
manage the Company for the long term.

Long-term Incentives

The Company's Shareholders have also approved the employee share option scheme known as the NoonTalk Employee
Share Option Scheme (“NoonTalk ESOS") at the extraordinary general meeting held on 26 October 2022.

The objectives of the NoonTalk ESOS are to provide eligible participants with the opportunity to participate in the equity
of the Company, motivate them towards better performance through increased dedication and loyalty, and align the
interests of the participants, especially key executives, with those of Shareholders. The NoonTalk ESOS, which forms an
integral and important component of the Company’s compensation plan, is designed primarily to reward and retain our
Directors and our Company's employees whose services are vital to the continual success of the Company.

The aggregate number of shares to be issued in respect of all options and awards granted or to be granted under the
NoonTalk ESOS shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of issued Shares, excluding treasury shares
and subsidiary holdings of the Company and will be in force for a maximum period of ten (10) years commencing from
26 October 2022.

The selection of a participant and the number of shares to be granted under the NoonTalk ESOS are determined at
the absolute discretion of the RC, taking into consideration factors such as his/her rank, job performance during the
performance period, potential for future development, his/her future contribution to the success and growth of the
Company and the extent of effort in achieving the performance target(s) within the performance period. Controlling
Shareholders of the Company are not eligible to participate in the NoonTalk ESOS. No share option has been granted
pursuant to the NoonTalk ESOS since its adoption and as at the date of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 47



CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Non-Executive Director Remuneration

The RC has adopted a framework which consists of a base fee to remunerate Independent Non-Executive Directors
based on their appointments and roles in the respective Board Committees, taking into account the level of
contribution and factors such as their effort, time spent, as well as responsibilities and the fees paid by comparable
companies. Directors’ fees are reviewed annually by the RC and tabled at the AGM for shareholders’ approval. The
Independent Directors have not been overcompensated to the extent that their independence is compromised.

Contractual Provisions to Reclaim Incentives

The Company does not have and is of the view that there is presently no urgent need to initiate any contractual
provisions in the terms of employment that allow for the reclaiming of incentive components from the Executive
Director(s) and Key Management Personnel in the exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or
of misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Executive Director(s) and Key Management Personnel owe
fiduciary duties to the Company. Furthermore, the Company believes that there are alternative legal avenues to these
specific contractual provisions that will enable the Company to recover financial losses arising from such exceptional
events from the Executive Director(s) and Key Management Personnel.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 8: The Company is transparent on its remuneration policies, level and mix of remuneration, the procedure
for setting remuneration, and the relationships between remuneration, performance and value creation.

Company’s Remuneration Policy and Criteria for Setting Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration policy (which covers all aspects of remuneration, including Directors’ fees, salaries,
allowances and bonuses, grant of share options, and benefits-in-kind) is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors and Key Management Personnel of the required
experience and expertise. The policy communicates to staff that total compensation is aligned with the achievement
of organisational and individual performance objectives and is benchmarked against relevant market or industry
compensation.

The remuneration package of Key Management Personnel comprises a fixed base cash component, including the base
salary and compulsory employer contribution to the Key Management Personnel’'s employee pension funds account,
and a variable cash component. The variable cash component is dependent on the Key Management Personnel’s
ability to achieve both personal performance targets and those of the Group. This aligns the compensation of Key
Management Personnel with that of the shareholders in terms of value creation. Key performance indicators for Key
Management Personnel are aligned to the interests and value creation of all stakeholders.

The Company did not grant any share options under the NoonTalk ESOS during FY2025 or since its approval for
adoption on 26 October 2022.

The Board believes the current remuneration framework is sufficient to attract qualified talent.

Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng (the Executive Director and CEO) and Mr Zheng Xianbin (the Executive Director and COO)
of the Company each has a service agreement with the Company for an initial period of three (3) years with effect
from the listing date. For further information on the remuneration of Mr Koh and Mr Zheng, please refer to the section
entitled “Directors, Executive Officers and Employees - Service Agreement” in the Company's Offer Document dated 14
November 2022 in connection with the Listing (“Offer Document”).
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A Breakdown Showing the Level and Mix of Each Director’'s and Key Management Personnel’s Remuneration

The individual Director's remuneration for FY2025 is as follows:

Remuneration of Directors

Base/Fixed

Salary and

Statutory Director’s Allowances/
Name Contributions Bonus Fees Benefits Total

S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

Mr Dasmond Koh 300,106 - - 785 300,891
Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda - - 45,000 - 45,000
Mr Soh Gim Teik - - 45,000 - 45,000
Mr Cruz Teng - - 30,000 - 30,000
Mr Zheng Xianbin 94,238 - - 916 95,154

The NC recommends Directors’ fees for the Board’'s endorsement and approval by shareholders at the Company’s
AGM. The fees are determined with regard to the scope and extent of the Directors’ responsibilities and obligations to
the Company. Directors’ fees will be paid following shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

For the upcoming AGM, the Board has recommended the Directors' fee of up to S$120,000 be tabled for shareholders’
approval.

No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. Each RC member has abstained from participating in the
deliberations of and voting on any resolution in respect of his/ her remuneration package or that of employees related
to him/her.

There were no termination, post-employment and retirement benefits granted to the Directors in FY2025.

Remuneration of Top 5 Key Management Personnel (who are not Directors or CEO)

As per defined in Provision 4.1 of Code 2018, the term “Key Management Personnel” shall mean the CEO and other
persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has only one (1) top Key Management Personnel who is the CFO, Mr
Terence Tan Chye Leng. The remuneration disclosure for the Group’s Key Management Personnel (exclude Directors
and the CEO) for FY2025 is as follows:

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Base/Fixed
Salary and
Statutory Allowances/
Name Contributions Bonus Benefits Total
Remuneration Band below S$250,000
Mr Terence Tan Chye Leng 99.5% - 0.5% 100%

The Group believes that it should not disclose the remuneration of the Key Management Personnel in absolute amount
due to the compact team, highly competitive market and in the interest of maintaining good morale and building
teamwork within the Group.

For the same reason above, the aggregate total remuneration paid to the Key Management Personnel for FY2025 will
not be disclosed.

There were no termination, retirement or post-employment benefits granted to Directors and Key Management
Personnel during FY2025.
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Remuneration of Employees Who are Substantial Shareholders, Immediate Family Members of Directors, the
CEO or Substantial Shareholder

There were no employees of the Group who were a substantial shareholder, an immediate family member of a
Director, the CEO or substantial shareholder during FY2025.

Other Payments and Benefits and Details of the Employee Share Scheme(s).

Save as disclosed, there were no other payments, compensation, or benefits paid by the Company to the Directors and
Key Management Personnel in FY2025.

Information on the NoonTalk ESOS is set out on pages 47, 48, 64 and 109 to 110 of this Annual Report, and further
information can be found in the Company’'s Offer Document dated 14 November 2022. No share option has been
granted pursuant to the NoonTalk ESOS since its adoption and as of the date of this Annual Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and ensures that the Management maintains a
sound system of Risk Management and internal controls, to safeguard the interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

Risk Governance

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of the risk management of the Company, establishing risk
management policies and tolerance strategies that set the direction for the Group and overseeing the implementation
of the risk management framework to ensure that risks are identified and managed.

The Board, with the support of the AC, oversees the design, implementation and monitoring of the Risk Management
and internal control systems.

Annual Review

The Company has put in place an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM") system to identify and manage significant risks.
The risk management framework helps the Board to formally identify the Group’s enterprise risks and address internal
controls covering financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks on an ongoing basis. These risks
are prioritised based on risk appetite and risk tolerance levels that the Board adopts. Key risks are escalated to and
discussed at the Board level, while all the other risks are handled at the Management level and reported to the Board
on an exceptional basis.

The Management, the External Auditor and the Internal Auditor conduct reviews and audits on a regular basis that
involve testing the adequacy and effectiveness of material internal controls on key risks. Any material non-compliance
or lapses in internal controls, along with corresponding mitigating actions will be reported to the AC. At least annually,
the Board, with assistance from the AC, will review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems, including financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks.

CEO and CFO Assurance

For FY2025, the Board has also received assurance from the CEO and the CFO that:

(a) the financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Group's operations and financial position; and

(b)  the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including financial, operational, compliance and
information technology controls, are adequate and effective.
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Board Conclusion

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO that (a) the financial records have been properly
maintained, and the financial statements for FY2025 give a true and fair view of the Group’s operations and financial
position, and (b) the Group’s risk management and internal controls system are adequate and effective.

In addition, the External Auditor and Internal Auditor have not highlighted any material internal control weaknesses
that have come to their attention during their respective audits. All external and internal audit findings and
recommendations were reported to the AC, and discussions were held between the AC and the auditors in the absence
of the Executive Directors and Key Management Personnel to review and address any potential concerns. The Board
noted that there were no major adverse findings in the risk management and internal control systems.

Based on the assurance from the CEO and the CFO referred to in the preceding paragraph, the internal controls
established and maintained by the Group, the reviews performed by the Management and the AC, the work performed
by the Internal Auditor, the review undertaken by the External Auditor as part of their statutory audit and the absence
of any whistleblowing report, the Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the Group's internal
controls - including financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls - and risk management
systems, were adequate and effective as at FY2025.

Audit Committee

Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Committee (“AC”) which discharges its duties objectively.

In performing its functions in accordance with a set of terms of reference, the AC's principal responsibilities include,
amongst others the following:

(a) to review the significant financial reporting issues and judgements so as to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company and any announcements relating to the Company’s financial performance;

(b)  toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and risk management systems at least
annually;

(c) to review the assurance from the CEO and the CFO on financial records and financial statements of the Group;

(d)  toreview the adequacy, effectiveness, independence, scope and results of the external audit and the Company's
internal audit function;

(e) to make recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment, removal, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the External Auditor;

(f) to establish and review, on an ongoing basis, the whistleblowing policies, processes and reporting procedures of
the Company;

(8) to monitor the Group’s compliance with legal, regulatory and Group policies;

(h)  to deal with matters relating to interested person transactions (if any) falling within the scope of Chapter 9 of the
Listing Manual (as defined hereunder), as well as related party transactions; and

(i) undertake generally such other functions and duties as may be required by law or the Catalist Rules.
The AC is responsible for, among others:
(a) assisting the Board in discharging its statutory responsibilities on financing and accounting matters;

(b) reviewing the relevance and consistency of accounting standards to ensure the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group;
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reviewing the periodic financial statements and results announcements before submission to the Board for
approval, focusing particularly on changes in accounting policies and practices, major risk areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, the going concern statement, significant financial reporting issues and
judgements, compliance with financial reporting standards, the Catalist Rules, statutory/regulatory requirements,
concerns and issues including any matters which the External Auditor may wish to discuss in the absence of
Management;

reviewing the financial risk areas, with a view to providing independent oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting, with the outcome of such review to be disclosed in the annual reports or, if the findings are material,
to be immediately announced via SGXNet;

reviewing the scope and results of the audit and its cost-effectiveness, and the independence and objectivity of
the External Auditor;

reviewing the External Auditor’s audit plan and audit report and the External Auditor's evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls, including financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls;

reviewing the key financial risk areas, the risk management structure and any oversight of the risk management
process and activities to mitigate and manage risk at acceptable levels determined by our Board;

reviewing the statements to be included in the annual report concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal controls systems, including financial, operational, compliance controls, and
information technology controls;

reviewing any interested person transactions and monitoring the procedures established to regulate interested
person transactions, including ensuring compliance with the Company's internal control system and the relevant
provisions of the Catalist Rules, as well as all conflicts of interest to ensure that proper measures to mitigate
such conflicts of interests have been put in place (see the section entitled “Interested Person Transactions -
Guidelines and Review Procedures for On-Going and Future Interested Person Transactions” of the Offer
Document dated 14 November 2022);

reviewing transactions falling within the scope of Chapter 10 of the Catalist Rules, if any;

making recommendations to the Directors on establishing an adequate, effective and independent internal
audit function (which can be in-house or outsourced to a reputable accounting/auditing firm or corporation)
and ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, staffed with persons with the relevant
qualifications and experience and that the Internal Auditor complies with the standards set by nationally or
internationally recognised professional bodies;

reviewing the scope and results of the internal audit procedures, and at least annually, the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

approving the hiring, removal, evaluation and compensation of the head of the internal audit function or the
accounting/auditing firm or corporation to which the internal audit function is outsourced;

ensuring that the internal audit function of the Company has unfettered access to all Group’s documents,
records, properties and personnel, including the Audit Committee, and has appropriate standing within the
Group;

meeting with the External Auditor and the Internal Auditor, and in each case without the presence of
Management, at least annually, and review the cooperation provided by Management to the Internal and
External Auditors;

reviewing and discussing with the Internal and External Auditors any suspected fraud or irregularity, or
suspected infringement of any relevant laws, rules or regulations which has or is likely to have, a material impact
on the Group's operating results or financial position and the Management's response, and at appropriate times,
reporting the matter to the Board and to the Sponsor;

appraising and reporting to the Board on the audits undertaken by the Internal and External Auditors and the
adequacy of disclosure of information;
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making recommendations to the Board on the proposals to Shareholders on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the External Auditor, and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the External
Auditor;

periodically reviewing the intellectual property protection policies with the Group’s intellectual property
protection committee to ensure that the policies and/or procedures are complied with, and are adequate and
effective for the Group's operations;

periodically reviewing, with the Internal and External Auditors (if required), the sufficiency of the measures
taken by the Group to mitigate the concentration and credit risks associated with the consortium arrangements
entered into by the Group;

periodically reviewing the appointment of employees that have been appointed onto the Board of the
Company's subsidiaries and procuring the immediate removal of such employees as Directors of the subsidiaries
upon cessation of their employment;

ensuring that the Group publicly discloses and clearly communicates to employees the existence of a
whistleblowing policy and the procedures for raising such concerns;

to assist the Board by overseeing the investigation of whistleblowing reports in a timely and impartial manner,
ensuring that all concerns raised are treated confidentially and are independently reviewed by the relevant
parties;

reviewing and establishing procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Group,
among others, criminal offences involving the Group or the employees, questionable accounting, auditing,
business, safety or other matters that impact negatively on the Group, and ensuring that arrangements are in
place for the independent investigations of such matter and for appropriate follow-up;

reviewing and approving all hedging policies and instruments (if any) to be implemented by the Group, and
conducting periodic reviews of the hedging policies together with the transactions and hedging activities
undertaken by the Group; and

to assist the Board with the ERM oversight and support the Board in reviewing the overall ERM framework,
ensuring that robust processes are in place to identify, assess, manage, and monitor key risks, including
strategic, financial, operational, compliance, and reputational risks.

The AC has the authority to investigate any matter within its term of reference and has been given full access to the
Management and reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly. The AC has full discretion to
invite any Director or Key Management Personnel to attend its meetings.

AC Composition

All members of the AC are Independent Directors who do not have any management or business relationships with
the Company or any substantial shareholder in the Company. None of the AC members were previously partners or
Directors of the Company’s external audit firm or held any financial interest in the external audit firm.

The AC comprises three (3) Independent Directors as follows:

Mr Soh Gim Teik (Chairman)
Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
Mr Cruz Teng

The AC Chairman, Mr Soh Gim Teik, who is also the Lead Independent Director, has relevant accounting, related
financial management and corporate advisory and governance background and experiences. He also has experience
serving as chairman and/or member of audit committees of other Singapore-listed companies.
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Independence of the External Auditors

The AC has assessed the independence of the External Auditor annually. The aggregate amount of fees paid/payable to
the External Auditor is set out below:

S$ %
Audit fees 110,000 96
Non-audit related services (“ARS") 4,200 4
Total fees 114,200 100

* ARS relates to tax computation and filing services.

The AC is satisfied that the External Auditor's independence has not been prejudiced and has recommended the re-
appointment of Foo Kon Tan LLP as the External Auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

Internal Audit function

The Company has engaged Baker Tilly Consultancy (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Baker Tilly”) as the internal auditor who
reports directly to the AC and administratively to the CFO. The AC has approved the engagement, evaluation, and
compensation of Baker Tilly as the internal auditor of the Company. The role of Baker Tilly is to provide independent
assurance to the AC that the Group maintains adequate and effective Risk Management and internal control systems.

The AC reviews and approves the internal audit plan to ensure the adequacy of the scope of the audit. The internal
audit plan complements that of the External Auditor and together, they form a robust risk-based audit approach
to facilitate the AC's review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

For FY2025, the AC is satisfied that Baker Tilly has discharged its duties effectively as the internal auditor. Baker Tilly
has unfettered access to all documents, records, properties and personnel, including access to the AC. Baker Tilly led by
Lim Wei Wei who has more than 20 years of professional experience, has adequate resources to perform its functions
effectively, is independent of the activities it audits, is staffed by suitably qualified and experienced professionals and
has appropriate standing within the Group. In assessing the engagement of Baker Tilly for the internal audit function,
the Board and the AC ensured that the internal audit function is sufficiently resourced, and internal audits are
performed by competent professional staff with the relevant qualifications and experience.

The scope of the internal audit covers key aspects of the Group’s internal controls established to address financial,
operational, compliance and information technology risks. The Internal Auditor's activities are guided by Baker Tilly’s
global internal auditing methodology, which is in line with the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors. For FY2025, after having reviewed the internal audit reports and
remedial actions implemented by the Management, the AC is satisfied that the internal audit function is independent,
effective and adequately resourced.

Independent Session with the External Auditor & Internal Auditor

The AC meets with the Internal Auditor and the External Auditor at least once annually to discuss audit findings and
recommendations without the presence of the Management. For FY2025, the AC met with the Internal Auditor and
External Auditor once without the presence of Management.

Auditors

The Company has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Catalist Rules in relation to the appointment of External
Auditor.

Whistleblowing

The Company has put in place a whistleblowing policy which sets out the procedures for a whistleblower to make a
report on misconduct or wrongdoing relating to the Group and its officers. The AC has reviewed the whistleblowing
policy that the Company has established and is responsible for the oversight and monitoring of whistleblowing. The
AC is satisfied that arrangements are in place to ensure independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate
follow-up actions to be taken.
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The Company publicly discloses details of its whistleblowing policy together with the reporting channel and
procedures through its website at www.noontalk.com and clearly communicates with employees, the existence of the
whistleblowing policy, which is in compliance with Catalist Rule 1204(18B) as elaborated below:

(a) the Company has procedures for raising such concerns to the AC Chairman via email at
AC_Chairman@noontalk.com and has an independent function comprising the AC Chairman and AC members to
investigate whistleblowing reports made in good faith;

(b)  the Company has clear channels through which staff and other persons may, in confidence, raise their concerns
about possible improprieties, fraudulent activities or malpractices within the Group in a responsible and
effective manner;

() the Company has arrangements and processes to facilitate independent investigation of such concerns and for
appropriate follow-up action;

(d)  the Company has confidentiality clauses that protect the identity of the whistleblower; and

(e) the Company is committed to ensuring the protection of the whistleblower against any detrimental and unfair
treatment for reports made in good faith and without malice.

For FY2025 and up to the date of this Annual Report, there were no complaints, concerns or issues received by the AC.
Summary of Audit Committee Activities

The AC reviewed the annual financial statements of the Group, the quality and reliability of information for inclusion in
financial reports, policies and practices put in place by the Management, reviewed the volume and nature of Interested
Person Transactions, nominated and recommended the re-appointment of the External Auditor and reviewed the
adequacy, effectiveness and independence of the External Auditor. The AC has assisted the Board in reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Risk Management and internal control systems, addressing financial, operational,
compliance and information technology risks of the Group.

Changes to accounting standards and issues directly impacting financial statements were reported to and discussed
with the AC by the External Auditor, ensuring that AC members remain up to date with such changes in the review of
the Group's financial statements, the AC discussed with the Management the accounting principles and assumptions
that were applied and considered the clarity of key disclosures in the financial statements.

The AC also considered the report from the External Auditor, including their findings on the significant risks and audit
focus areas. The following Key Audit Matters (“KAM") highlighted by the External Auditor on pages 68 to 69 of this
Annual Report were discussed with the Management and the External Auditor:

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matter(s) How the AC Reviewed the KAM

Impairment testing of right-of- | The AC considered the approach, methodology and inputs applied to the valuation
use asset model in assessing the impairment of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset.

The AC concurred with the assessment of the Management and the valuer.

Expected credit losses on | The AC considered the approach and methodology in determining the estimated
finance lease receivable, trade | expected credit losses on finance lease receivable, trade receivables and contract
receivables and contract assets | assets, which is dependent upon the Company's expectations on the collectability
of finance lease receivable, trade receivables and contract assets. In making
its estimates of collectability of finance lease receivable, trade receivables
and contract assets, the Company takes into account the historical credit loss
experience adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to debtors and the
economic environment.

Revenue recognition The AC considered the internal controls established and maintained by the
Management over project management, costing and revenue recognition. The AC
also noted the periodic reviews conducted by the Management in respect of long-
term projects where the Company satisfies its performance obligations over time,
which include the assessment of reasonableness of the estimated total budgeted
costs of each project, and whether any provision for onerous contracts is required.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meetings

Principle 11: The Company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably, enabling them to exercise shareholders’
rights and have the opportunity to communicate their views on matters pertaining to the Company. The
Company gives shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment of its performance, position
and prospects.

Shareholder Rights

All shareholders are treated fairly and equitably, and the Company strives to disclose information on all major
developments that could materially impact the Company in a timely manner.

Shareholders are entitled to attend the general meetings and are afforded the opportunity to participate effectively in
and vote at general meetings.

Resolutions

The Company ensures that separate resolutions are presented at general meetings for each distinct issue. These
resolutions are proposed for approval by shareholders on substantially separate matters. “Bundling” of resolutions is
done in situations when the resolutions are interdependent and linked, so as to form one significant proposal and only
when there are reasons and material implications involved. In such cases of “bundling”, the Company ensures that the
reasons and implications are clearly explained to shareholders in the Notice of Meeting.

All resolutions proposed at general meetings shall be put to vote by way of a poll pursuant to Rule 730A(2) of the
Catalist Rules. All votes cast, for or against, and the respective percentages, in respect of each resolution are tallied and
disclosed at the meeting, and an announcement with the detailed results showing the numbers of votes cast for and
against for each resolution and the respective percentages will be released via SGXNet after the general meetings.

Attendance at General Meetings

All Directors, particularly the Chairman of the Board, the respective Chairman of the AC, NC and RC, will be present and
available to address shareholders’ queries at the general meetings. The External Auditor will also be present to address
queries regarding the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor's report.

Voting Procedures

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings, participate effectively at the meeting and to vote in
person or by proxy.

The Company's Constitution provides for a shareholder or a depositor to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to
attend and vote at the general meetings of the Company. Where the shareholder is a “Relevant Intermediary” as
defined under Section 181(6) of the Act, the said shareholder can appoint more than two (2) proxies. Relevant
Intermediary includes corporations holding licenses in providing nominee and custodial services and CPF Board which
purchases shares on behalf of the CPF investors. Proxies need not be a shareholder of the Company. Shareholders are
informed of such meetings through the annual report or circulars sent to all shareholders, notices published online
and/or in print, in the newspapers, as well as announcements released via SGXNet.

Shareholders will be briefed on the rules governing such meetings and the voting procedures of the general meetings.
An independent polling agent is appointed by the Company, who will explain the voting procedures that govern the
general meetings. Results of voting are announced in a timely manner via SGXNet.

Voting in absentia by email, mail or fax is not implemented due to authentication and other security-related concerns.
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Minutes of General Meetings

Minutes of general meetings recording the substantial and relevant comments and queries relating to the agendas of
the general meetings raised by shareholders, together with responses from the Board and Management, are prepared
by the Company Secretary.

The Company will publish the minutes of the AGM on the Company's website and SGXNet within one (1) month from
the date of the respective meeting.

Dividend Policy

The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy. The form, frequency and amount of future dividends on the
Company’s shares will depend on the Company’s earnings, general financial condition, results of operations, capital
requirements, cash flow, general business condition, development plans and other factors as the Directors may, in their
absolute discretion, deem appropriate. Therefore, there is no assurance that dividends will be paid in the future or of
the amount or timing of any future dividends. The Company may declare an annual dividend subject to the approval of
the shareholders in a general meeting, but the amount of such dividend shall not exceed the amount recommended by
the Directors. The Directors may also declare an interim dividend without the approval of shareholders.

The Board has not recommended any dividend for FY2025 in view of the prevailing business and financial conditions of
the Group.

Engagement with Shareholders

Principle 12: The Company communicates regularly with its shareholders and facilitates the participation of
shareholders during general meetings and other dialogues to allow shareholders to communicate their
views on various matters affecting the Company.

Communication

The Company upholds high standards of transparency in corporate disclosure and is committed to providing
information to its shareholders in a timely and fair manner via SGXNet and the Company’s website. Where inadvertent
disclosure is made to a select group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly to all stakeholders as soon as
practicable. Communication is made through:

(a) the annual report prepared and issued to all shareholders. The Board ensures that the annual report includes all
relevant information of the Company, including future developments, if any, and other disclosures required by
the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the Catalist Rules;

(b) result announcements containing a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group for the
corresponding period;

() press releases informing of major developments relating to the Group; and
(d)  analyst briefings and/or roadshows.

The AGM of the Company will be held within four (4) months after the end of the financial year. The Company will hold
its AGM for FY2025 on 31 October 2025, details of which are disclosed in the Notice of AGM.

In line with the Company’s corporate social responsibility initiatives and environmental sustainability efforts, the
Company's annual reports and circulars to Shareholders will be made available on the Company’s Investor Relations
web page and SGXNet for shareholders to view and/or download.

Printed copies of the annual report and circular will only be mailed to shareholders upon their request via the request
form. Shareholders will receive the AGM and EGM notices, proxy forms and request form (to request printed copies of
annual reports and circulars) via mail. The documents will also be accessible on the Company’s Investor Relations web
page and on SGXNet.

Notices of the AGM and EGM are also advertised in a national newspaper within the mandatory period.

Shareholders can access financial information, announcements, press releases, annual reports and other business-
related information via the Company’s website www.noontalk.com.
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Conduct of Shareholder Meeting

At general meetings, shareholders are given opportunities to voice their views and direct company-related questions
to the Directors or the Management. The Chairman of the Board, members of the AC, NC and RC will be present and
available to address questions at general meetings. The External Auditor will also be present.

Shareholders may submit questions in advance regarding resolutions to be tabled at general meetings or the
Company's business and operations. The Company will address relevant and substantial questions via responses
posted on SGXNet and the Company’s website prior to the meeting.

The Company will address any clarifications sought, or substantial and relevant follow-up questions received after the
stipulated cut-off date during the general meeting itself.

Shareholders attending the general meetings may also submit substantial and relevant queries relating to the
meeting’s agenda during the meeting. The Management and the Board will address these queries accordingly.

All resolutions at the Company’s general meetings are voted by poll, which is essential for enhancing corporate
governance. For cost-effectiveness, poll voting is conducted manually, and results are announced during the meeting.
The results for each of the resolutions tabled are also published on SGXNet and the Company’'s website on the same
day as the meeting.

Investor Relations Policy

The Company’s Investor Relations team solicits feedback and encourages communication with shareholders and
investors. Shareholders and investors may also contact the Company via email: ir@noontalk.com. The Company
addresses the concerns of shareholders (including institutional and retail investors) via investor/analyst briefings after
the release of its periodic financial results. The Company will provide shareholders and prospective investors with
relevant information needed to make well-informed investment decisions.

The Company's communications, including responses to inquiries from media and analysts, as well as all investor
relations events, are coordinated by the Investor Relations department in close consultation with the Executive
Directors and the CFO.

The team is responsible for integrating finance, accounting, corporate communications, and legal compliance to
facilitate effective communication between the Company and its shareholders as well as its material stakeholders.

Investor Engagement

Outside of the financial announcement periods, when necessary and appropriate, the Investor Relations team

will engage with analysts and/or investors who wish to seek a better understanding of the Group’s business and

operations. Discussions will be confined to publicly available and known information.

This effort enables the Company to gather feedback from the investment community on a range of strategic and

topical issues, providing valuable insights from investors’ perspectives. Shareholders can also submit questions to the

Company through the Investor Relations web page of the Company's website.

MANAGING STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIPS

Engagement with Stakeholders

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and balancing the needs and interests of
material stakeholders, as part of its overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the
company are served.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Board considers the Company's obligations to its shareholders and the interests of its material stakeholders, as
relationships with these stakeholders may impact the Company's long-term sustainability.
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Stakeholders are parties who may be affected by the Company’'s activities or whose actions can affect the ability of
the Company to conduct its activities. The Board has identified its stakeholders as customers, employees, suppliers,
landlords, investors, media, government institutions and the communities.

The Company maintains its website to ensure that information to shareholders and material stakeholders is accurate
and up-to-date. Additionally, to keep stakeholders informed of the Company’s commitment to creating long-term value
and supporting the sustainable development of the global economy, the Company will publish its 2025 Sustainability
Report in accordance with the Catalist Rules and it will be made available in the Investor Relations web page of the
Company's website.

Communication

Communication with shareholders is managed by the Company's Investor Relations department. All announcements
including half-yearly and full-year financial results, notices, press releases, analyst briefings, presentations, and updates
on acquisitions and, corporate development as well as any other material developments are released via SGXNet.

The Company does not practice selective disclosure and price-sensitive information is publicly released immediately, as
required under the Catalist Rules. In addition, all shareholders receive the Company’s annual report and Notice of AGM
through SGXNet and the Investor Relations web page of the Company’s website.

Apart from the announcements, annual reports and circulars published on SGXNet, the Company will also conduct
media and analyst briefings or interviews, where appropriate, to provide shareholders and the public with deeper
insights into its business and strategies. Additionally, the Company will issue press releases or organise media/analyst
briefings to keep shareholders informed of its developments.

The Company’'s Executive Directors are responsible for communication with shareholders, and this is facilitated by
the Investor Relations department. The Company maintains an Investor Relations web page on its corporate website
(www.noontalk.com) where shareholders can access the financial information, announcements, press releases and
publications of the Company.

Material Contracts

There was no material contracts entered into by the Group involving the interest of the CEO, any Director, or
controlling shareholder, which are either still subsisting at the end of FY2025 or, if not then subsisting, entered since
the end of the previous financial year.

Confirmation of Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the Group's internal controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and information technology, and risk management systems, were adequate and effective as at
FY2025. This is based on the assurance from the CEO and the CFO, the internal controls established and maintained by
the Group, the reviews performed by the Management and the AC, the work performed by the Internal Auditor and the
review undertaken by the External Auditor, as part of their statutory audit.

Interested Persons Transaction (“IPT")

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a
timely manner to the AC and that the transactions are conducted at arm’s length basis and on normal commercial
terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders.

The Company has not obtained a general mandate from shareholders for IPT. Other than the interested person
transactions as disclosed on pages 149 to 161 of the Offer Document dated 14 November 2022, there was no
interested person transaction of S$100,000 and above during FY2025.

The Company maintains a register to record interested persons and their associates, which is updated immediately
upon any changes, to allow the identification of interested persons. The list of interested persons shall be reviewed
quarterly by the CFO and is subject to verification or declaration as required by the AC for such period as determined
by them.

The AC shall review all IPTs minimally on a half-yearly basis to ensure that they are carried out on normal commercial

terms and in accordance with the procedures, as well as to ensure that the prevailing rules and regulations, in
particular, Chapter 9 of the Catalist Rules are complied with.
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Dealing in Securities

The Company has adopted an internal compliance code of conduct to guide and advise its Directors and executives
regarding dealings in the Company's securities in compliance with Rule 1204(19) of the Catalist Rules. The Company,
Directors and executives shall not deal in the Company’s shares on short-term considerations or if they are in
possession of price-sensitive information and during the period commencing one (1) month prior to the release of the
half-year and full-year financial results announcement and ending on the date of the announcement of the results.
Directors and senior management are expected to observe insider trading laws at all times, even when dealing in
securities during permitted trading periods while in possession of price-sensitive information.

In general, the Company's policy encourages Directors and employees of the Company to hold the Company’s
securities and not deal in the Company’'s securities on short-term considerations. The policy is to ensure that
the Company's Directors, executives and employees of the Company are aware of their legal obligations towards
the dealing of securities of the Company. Persons who are in possession of unpublished material price-sensitive
information and use such information for their own material gain are committing an offence of insider trading.

Use of Proceeds

The Company had received gross proceeds of S$4,840,000 from the placement of new shares during the IPO. The
proceeds had been utilised in accordance with the percentage allocated in the Offer Information, with subsequent
strategic re-allocations as detailed below. The Company had on August 27, 2025, announced the completion of the use
of proceeds.

While The Company's fiscal year 2025 commenced on July 1, 2024, a significant strategic decision regarding the IPO
proceeds occurred shortly thereafter, demonstrating the Board’'s proactive management of capital in response to
evolving business needs.

On July 11, 2024, the Company announced a re-allocation of a portion of the IPO proceeds. The balance of the net
proceeds designated for investment in multimedia technology remained unchanged at $S$484,000. Given the lack
of suitable opportunities for investment into multimedia technology, the Company believed it was more prudent to
realign its focus to its core business competencies, facilitating the scaling of operations to meet increasing demand and
explore new market opportunities. Therefore, as part of its strategic planning, the S$484,000 of IPO Proceeds originally
allocated for investment in multimedia technology was more effectively utilised for working capital and general
corporate purposes. Re-allocating resources towards hiring specialised talent and forming strategic collaborations
with technology partners would better support the Company’s business growth. By tapping into diverse expertise,
the Company could remain focused on creative development while accessing the latest technologies to enhance its
bespoke works. This strategy improves service offerings and strengthens core competencies, ensuring sustained
growth and market relevance. The Board considered the aforesaid re-allocation of IPO Proceeds to be advantageous to
the Company and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Subsequently, within the fiscal year, on April 16, 2025, a further strategic re-allocation was approved and announced.
The Company believed it was more prudent to realign its focus on core business competencies, enabling the scaling
of operations through organic means, to meet growing demand and to pursue new market opportunities. As part of
this strategic realignment, the S$755,000 of IPO Proceeds originally allocated to extending our regional footprint and
leadership in existing business verticals, particularly in film and drama production, was more effectively reallocated
toward working capital and general corporate purposes, ensuring sustained growth and market relevance. The
Company was allocating the aforementioned proceeds to organic initiatives, which inherently require working capital
to support operational needs, such as project deposits and general corporate expenses. The Board considered the
aforesaid reallocation of IPO Proceeds to be advantageous to the Company and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

We are pleased to confirm that, as of August 27, 2025, all net proceeds from the IPO, including the amounts re-
allocated to working capital and general corporate purposes, have been fully utilised. The strategic deployment
of these funds, particularly through the enhanced working capital, has been instrumental in supporting the Group's
core business competencies, facilitating organic growth, meeting increasing demand, and exploring new market
opportunities, thereby strengthening market relevance and ensuring sustained growth.

The Board of Directors maintained continuous oversight throughout the entire process of IPO proceeds utilisation and
re-allocation. All decisions were made with due diligence, in compliance with regulatory requirements, and with the
primary objective of maximising long-term shareholder value. This proactive and agile management of the Group's
capital has been crucial in adapting to market conditions and solidifying financial and operational foundation.
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Sustainability Report

The Company’'s 2025 Sustainability Report will be published in accordance with the Catalist Rules. The report aims
to keep stakeholders informed of the Group’s commitment to fostering the creation of long-term value for the
stakeholders and sustainable development of the global economy.

Non-sponsor Fees

There was no non-sponsor fee paid to the Company’s Sponsor, Evolve Capital Advisory Private Limited during FY2025.
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DIRECTORS'
STATEMENT

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

We submit this statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of NoonTalk Media Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2025.

In our opinion,

(a) the accompanying statement of financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows,
together with the notes thereon, are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2025 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Group for the year ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International); and

(b) at the date of this statement, as disclosed in Note 2(a) to the financial statements, there are reasonable grounds
to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue.

Names of Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:
Wee Keng Neo Lynda (Non-executive Chairman and Independent Director)
Dasmond Koh Chin Eng (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Zheng Xianbin (Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer)

Soh Gim Teik (Lead Independent Director)

Cruz Teng (Independent Director)

Arrangements to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During and at the end of the financial year, the Company was not a party to any arrangement of which the object was
to enable the directors to acquire benefits through the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other corporate body, other than as disclosed in this statement.

Directors’ Interest in Shares or Debentures

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Companies Act
1967, none of the directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares or debentures
of the Company, except as follows:

Holdings in which Director is
Deemed to have an Interest

As at 30.6.2025

As at 1.7.2024 and 21.7.2025#
The Company -
NoonTalk Media Limited Number of ordinary shares
Dasmond Koh Chin Eng * 123,844,288 123,844,288
Zheng Xianbin * 7,020,000 7,020,000
Wee Keng Neo Lynda * 200,000 200,000

# There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21 July
2025.

* Dasmond Koh Chin Eng, Zheng Xianbin and Wee Keng Neo Lynda are deemed to have an interest in the 123,844,288, 7,020,000

and 200,000 shares, respectively, held in the name of CGS International Securities Singapore Pte. Ltd., which is a nominee
company.
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Employee Share Option Scheme

In conjunction with the Company's listing on the Catalist of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST"), the Company adopted the NoonTalk Employee Share Option Scheme (the “ESOS”) which was approved by
the Company’s shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26 October 2022. The ESOS is administered
by the Remuneration Committee which comprises the following members:

Cruz Teng (Chairman)
Soh Gim Teik
Wee Keng Neo Lynda

The objectives of the ESOS are as follows:

(a) foster an ownership culture within the Company which aligns the interests of the Company’s employees with the
interests of shareholders;

(b) motivate participants to achieve key financial and operational goals of the Company and/or their respective
business units;

() make total employee remuneration sufficiently competitive to recruit and retain staff having skills that are
commensurate with the Company’s ambition to become a world-class company; and

(d)  to attract potential employees with relevant skills to contribute to the Company and to create value for
shareholders.

The ESOS provides for the grant of share options to full-time employees and directors who have attained the age of 21
years and hold such rank as may be designated by the Remuneration Committee (“ESOS participants”), provided that
none shall be an undischarged bankrupt or have entered into a composition with his creditors.

Controlling shareholders shall not be eligible to participate in the ESOS. However, the associates of the controlling
shareholders who meet the eligibility criteria of the above shall be eligible to participate in the ESOS provided that (a)
the participation of, and (b) the terms of each grant and the actual number of awards granted under the ESOS, to a
participant who is an associate of a controlling shareholder are approved by the independent shareholders in separate
resolutions for each such person.

Under the ESOS, the number of shares over which the Remuneration Committee may grant options on any date, when
added to the number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the ESOS, shall not exceed
15% of the number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) on the day preceding the date
of the relevant grant.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to the exercise of the options granted
under the ESOS to participants who are associates of controlling shareholders shall not exceed 25% of the total
number of shares available under the ESOS.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to the exercise of the options granted
under the ESOS to each participant who is an associate of a controlling shareholder shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares available under the ESOS.

Options granted with the exercise price set at market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in part at any time, by
an ESOS participant during the period commencing after the first anniversary of the date of grant and expiring on the
tenth anniversary of such date of grant (or such shorter period if so determined by the Remuneration Committee).

Options granted with exercise price set at a discount to market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in part at
any time, by an ESOS participant during the period commencing after the second anniversary of the date of grant and
expiring on the tenth anniversary of such date of grant (or such shorter period if so determined by the Remuneration
Committee).

To date, there has been no award granted pursuant to the ESOS since its commencement.
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Audit Committee
At the date of this statement, the Audit Committee comprises the following members:

Soh Gim Teik (Chairman)
Wee Keng Neo Lynda
Cruz Teng

The Audit Committee performed the functions specified in Section 201B(5) of the Companies Act 1967, the Listing
Manual - Section B: Rules of Catalist (the “Catalist Rules”) of the SGX-ST and the Singapore Code of Corporate
Governance, including the following:

(i) assisting the Board of Directors in discharging its statutory responsibilities on financing and accounting matters;

(i) reviewing the assurance from the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the financial
records and financial statements of the Company;

(iiiy  reviewing significant financial reporting issues and judgments to ensure the integrity of the financial statements
and any formal announcements relating to financial performance;

(iv)  reviewing the adequacy, effectiveness, independence, scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness,
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditor;

(v) reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan and auditor’s report, and the external auditor's evaluation of the
system of internal accounting controls, including financial, operational, compliance and information technology
controls, as well as reviewing the Company's implementation of any recommendations to address any control
weaknesses highlighted by the external auditor;

(vi)  reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls systems, including financial,
operational, compliance and information technology controls, and, where necessary and appropriate, provide
a statement on the comment of the Board of Directors on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls;

(vii)  reviewing any interested person transactions and monitoring the procedures established to regulate interested
person transactions, including ensuring compliance with the Company’s internal control system and the relevant
provisions of the Catalist Rules, as well as all conflicts of interests;

(viii) reviewing the scope and results of the internal audit procedures and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal audit function;

(ix)  meeting with the external and internal auditors, in each case without the presence of management;

(x) reviewing the nature, extent and costs of non-audit services performed by the external auditor, to ensure their
independence and objectivity;

(xi)  making recommendations to the Board of Directors on (i) the proposals to Shareholders on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and (ii) the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

(xii)  undertaking such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board of Directors, and report to the
Board of Directors its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the Audit
Committee; and

(xiii) undertaking generally such other functions and duties as may be required by law or the Catalist Rules, and by
amendments made thereto from time to time.

The Audit Committee confirmed that it has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the external

auditor to the Company and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services would not affect the independence
of the external auditor.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the cooperation of the management and has been given the resources
required for it to discharge its function properly. It also has full discretion to invite any director and executive officer to
attend its meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditor and has recommended

to the Board of Directors that the external auditor, Foo Kon Tan LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as auditor at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Independent Auditor

The independent auditor, Foo Kon Tan LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants, has expressed its
willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors

DASMOND KOH CHIN ENG
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

ZHENG XIANBIN
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Dated: 16 October 2025
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NoonTalk Media Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (the “Group”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company as at 30 June 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial position of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2025 and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
("ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements. At at 30 June 2025, the Group has net liabilities and net
current assets of $$396,881 and S$22,317, respectively, and the Company has net liabilities and net current assets of
S$269,351 and S$149,747, respectively. For the financial year ended 30 June 2025, the Group incurred net loss and
net operating cash outflows of S$1,795,950 and S$900,668, respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the financial statements is dependent on the factors
disclosed in Note 2(a).

If the Group were unable to continue in operational existence, the Group may be unable to discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business, and adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need
to be realised other than in the normal course of business and at amounts which could differ significantly from the
amounts at which they are currently recorded in the statement of financial position. In addition, the Group may need
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. No such
adjustments have been made to the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key Audit Matter

Our Responses and Work Performed

Impairment testing of right-of-use asset (refer to Note 4 to the financial statements)

As at 30 June 2025, the Group's right-of-use asset
amounted to S$139,335. In view of the net loss and net
operating cash outflows incurred by the Group for the
financial year ended 30 June 2025, management has
assessed that there are indications of impairment of
right-of-use asset of the Group. Accordingly, the assets
are tested for impairment.

The impairment testing of the right-of-use asset
is considered to be a key audit matter due to the
judgemental nature of key assumptions and the
significance of the carrying amounts of the assets in the
statement of financial position of the Group.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which an asset's or cash-generating unit’'s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal.

Fair value less costs of disposal, using the market
approach, encompasses estimating the current market
incremental borrowing rate of comparable lease. Input
inaccuracies or inappropriate bases used to determine
the level of impairment, including the comparable assets
used in the fair value measurements, could result in
material misstatement in the financial statements.

The valuation techniques and inputs to the impairment

tests based on fair value less costs of disposal are
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s testing of
impairment and determination of the recoverable amount
of the Group's right-of-use asset included:

° Assessing the methodology used by the
management’s expert;

° Understanding and reviewing the appropriateness
and reasonableness of assumptions in the input
data from management (including those provided
by the management's expert) through discussions,
comparisons to industry peers and independent
external data sources, and agree to supporting
documentation and historical trends; and

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management's expert.

We engaged auditor's expert to assist us in the above.
We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the auditor's expert, and the adequacy of the work
performed by the expert.

We also reviewed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements, describing the methodologies used,
degree of subjectivity and key assumptions used in the
estimates.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter Our Responses and Work Performed

Expected credit losses on finance lease receivable, trade receivables and contract assets (refer to Note 6,
Note 8, Note 9 and Note 28.1 to the financial statements)

As at 30 June 2025, the Group's finance lease receivable, As part of our audit procedures, we
trade receivables and contract assets amounted to
$$249,543, S$857,757 and S$164,040, respectively, e reviewed the ageing analysis to identify collection

and constituted, in aggregate, 53% of the Group's risks;
total assets. The Group determines the impairment
of finance lease receivable, trade receivables and e checked for evidence of collections subsequent to

contract assets by making debtor-specific assessment
of expected credit losses (“ECLs") and uses a provision
matrix for the remaining group of debtors that is based e discussed with management about the status of
on historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward- long-outstanding balances and management'’s
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic consideration of debtors' specific profiles and credit

the end of the financial year on a sampling basis;

environment. Due to the significant judgements and risks; and

estimates applied by management in the measurement

of ECLs, we have determined this area to be a key audit e evaluated management's inputs used in the
matter. computation of historical loss rates and assessed

the reasonableness of management’s assumptions
used in establishing the forward-looking
adjustments.

In addition, we assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the financial statements.

Revenue recognition (refer to Note 17 to the financial statements)

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025, included in  As part of our audit procedures, we

the revenue of $$6,256,819, is revenue from contracts

with customers of S$5,896,709 of which S$5,476,075 is e obtained an understanding of the revenue
recognised at a point in time and S$420,634 over time. recognition processes, performed a walkthrough
of the significant classes of transactions and
evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of
the relevant internal controls;

Under SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration in the contracts to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for promised goods e reviewed significant contracts during the financial
or services to the customers as and when the Group year to understand the performance obligations as
satisfies its performance obligation, which may be agreed with the customers;

satisfied at a point in time or over time based on the

contractual arrangement with customers. The evaluation e evaluated the appropriateness of the Group's
of the relevant terms in the respective contracts with revenue recognition policies as detailed in Note
customers requires significant judgement. 2(d) to the financial statements in accordance with

SFRS(1) 15;

° tested revenue transactions on a sampling basis
by assessing the recognition and measurement
criteria based on SFRS(l) 15 and verifying to the
relevant supporting documents; and

° tested the cut-off of revenue as at the end of the
financial year.

In addition, we assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the financial statements.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report such as “Key Highlights”, “Business Highlights”, “Message to Shareholders”, “Financial Review” and
“Corporate Governance”, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and SFRS(l)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosure, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Teik Tiong.

Foo Kon Tan LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore,
16 October 2025
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ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset
Intangible asset

Finance lease receivable
Investment in subsidiary

Current Assets

Finance lease receivable
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Contract costs

Film product

Prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings

Current Liabilities

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Provision for restoration cost

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Note: The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 were prepared for the first time due to the incorporation
of NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd. during the financial year. The comparative information refers to the financial information of the separate
financial statements of the Company which also represents the Group.

Note

N O bW

10
11

12

13

14
15

14
15
16

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$

10,632 10,632 165,336
139,335 139,335 454,471
18,591 18,591 31,275
102,179 102,179 249,542
- 100 -
270,737 270,837 900,624
147,363 147,363 140,569
1,095,808 1,234,337 996,080
164,040 164,040 262,133
7,000 7,000 161,587
8,000 8,000 155,000
34,266 34,266 12,649
686,760 675,638 1,613,496
2,143,237 2,270,644 3,341,514
2,413,974 2,541,481 4,242,138
8,763,058 8,763,058 8,763,058
(9,159,939) (9,032,409) (7,363,989)
(396,881) (269,351) 1,399,069
139,935 139,935 217,883
550,000 550,000 -
689,935 689,935 217,883
78,047 78,047 326,805
225,365 225,365 595,739
- - 66,559
1,717,508 1,717,485 1,536,083
100,000 100,000 100,000
2,120,920 2,120,897 2,625,186
2,810,855 2,810,832 2,843,069
2,413,974 2,541,481 4,242,138

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Impairment losses on trade receivables

Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss per share (Singapore cent)
- Basic and diluted

Note

17

18

19
20
21
22

23

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

The Group The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
6,256,819 4,439,247
(5,763,734) (4,300,995)
493,085 138,252
196,951 154,864
(2,273,250) (2,784,829)
(75,645) (131,992)
(32,474) (33,554)
(80,950) (1,085,003)
(23,667) (39,217)
(1,795,950) (3,781,479)
- (25,260)
(1,795,950) (3,806,739)
(0.91) (1.92)

Note: The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 were prepared for the first time due to the incorporation
of NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd. during the financial year. The comparative information refers to the financial information of the separate

financial statements of the Company which also represents the Group.

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

Balance at 1 July 2023

Loss for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 30 June 2024

Loss for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 30 June 2025

Share Accumulated
Capital Losses Total
S$ S$ S$

8,763,058 (3,557,250) 5,205,808
- (3,806,739) (3,806,739)

8,763,058 (7,363,989) 1,399,069
- (1,795,950) (1,795,950)

8,763,058 (9,159,939) (396,881)

Note: The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 were prepared for the first time due to
the incorporation of NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd. during the financial year. The comparative information refers to the
financial information of the separate financial statements of the Company which also represents the Group.
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of film product
Amortisation of intangible asset
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use asset

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Finance income on net investment in finance lease

Gain on sublease

Impairment loss on film product
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Interest expense

Interest income from fixed deposits

Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in trade and other receivables
Changes in contract assets

Changes in contract costs

Changes in film production in progress
Changes in prepayments

Changes in contract liabilities

Changes in trade and other payables
Cash used in operations

Interest received

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from finance lease receivable
Purchase of intangible asset

Purchase of plant and equipment

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from a director’s loan
Repayment of bank loans

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

Note

6,18
6,18
11,19

20
18

w

> > > >

12

The Group The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
(1,795,950) (3,781,479)
66,050 37,177
12,684 6,776
154,692 247,948
508,656 616,953
12 -
(15,431) (10,012)
- (59,884)
80,950 1,081,065
32,474 33,554
23,667 39,217
(2,778) (22,295)
(934,974) (1,810,980)
(132,202) 244,069
98,093 (111,171)
154,587 (128,107)
- (168,347)
(21,617) 79,841
(248,758) 224,917
181,425 771,276
(903,446) (898,502)
2,778 22,295
(900,668) (876,207)
156,000 52,000
- (38,051)
- (3,273)
156,000 10,676
(23,667) (39,217)
(641,842) (764,450)
550,000 -
(66,559) (179,124)
(182,068) (982,791)
(926,736) (1,848,322)
1,613,496 3,461,818
686,760 1,613,496

Note: The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 were prepared for the first time due to the incorporation
of NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd. during the financial year. The comparative information refers to the financial information of the separate

financial statements of the Company which also represents the Group.

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

Note A: Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

The following is the disclosures of the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities, excluding equity items:

Balance at 1 July 2023

Changes from financing cash flows

- Interest paid

- Payment of lease liabilities

- Repayment of bank loans

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes

- Interest expense

- New lease

Total liability-related other changes
Balance at 30 June 2024

Changes from financing cash flows

- Interest paid

- Payment of lease liabilities

- Proceeds from a director’s loans

- Repayment of bank loans

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes

- Interest expense

- New lease

Total liability-related other changes
Balance at 30 June 2025

Note: The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 were prepared for the first time due to
the incorporation of NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd. during the financial year. The comparative information refers to the

Lease
Liabilities Bank Loans
(Note 14) (Note 15) Total
S$ S$ S$
1,205,857 245,683 1,451,540
(25,467) (13,750) (39,217)
(764,450) - (764,450)
- (179,124) (179,124)
(789,917) (192,874) (982,791)
25,467 13,750 39,217
372,215 - 372,215
397,682 13,750 411,432
813,622 66,559 880,181
(22,381) (1,286) (23,667)
(641,842) - (641,842)
- 550,000 550,000
- (66,559) (66,559)
(664,223) 482,155 (182,068)
22,381 1,286 23,667
193,520 - 193,520
215,901 1,286 217,187
365,300 550,000 915,300

financial information of the separate financial statements of the Company which also represents the Group.

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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General Information

The consolidated financial statements of NoonTalk Media Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (the
“Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the directors on the date of the Directors’ Statement.

The Company is incorporated as a limited liability company and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore.
The Company is listed on the Catalist of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST").

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 1 Harvey Road, #04-01 Tan
Heng Lee Building, Singapore 369610.

The principal activities of the Company are to carry on the business of artiste and talent management,
multimedia, film and drama production, and event conceptualisation.

The ultimate controlling party of the Company is Mr Dasmond Koh Chin Eng.
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s"). The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except as otherwise described in the notes below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar (“S$") which is the Company's functional currency. All
financial information has been presented in Singapore Dollar, unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SFRS(l)s requires the use of judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The significant accounting estimates and assumptions used and areas involving a high degree of judgement are
described below.

Significant judgements in applying accounting policies
Going concern

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025, the Group incurred net loss and net operating cash outflows
of S$1,795,950 and S$900,668 respectively and for the financial year ended 30 June 2024, for the Company,
$$3,806,739 and S$876,207, respectively. As at 30 June 2025, the Group had net current assets and net liabilities
of S$22,317 and S$396,881, respectively whereas the Company had net current assets and net liabilities of
S$149,747 (2024 - S$716,328) and S$269,351 (2024 - net assets of S$1,399,069), respectively.

Notwithstanding this, the directors are of the view that the going concern assumption is appropriate for the
preparation of the financial statements, due to the following:

(i) The Group and the Company had cash and bank balances of S$686,760 and S$675,638 (2024 -
S$1,613,496) respectively. Having regard to measure to tighten controls over expenses and to better
manage the Group's and the Company’'s working capital, the directors believe that the Group and the
Company are able to adequately manage their cash flows and continue to operate as a going concern.
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Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Significant judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Going concern (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to a loan agreement entered into by the Group with the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 9 October 2024, a loan of S$2,000,000 will be extended to the Group for working
capital purposes. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand on or after 1 July 2026, if
necessary. The loan will be provided to the Group in tranches upon signing and from December 2024 to
April 2025, or as and when required according to the cash flow requirements of the Group. Nevertheless,
subsequent to the end of the financial year as at 30 June 2025 and the date of authorisation of the
financial statements, additional funds of S$800,000 have been provided to the Group based on the terms
of the loan agreement, other than the funds of S$550,000 provided during the year.

In assessing whether the Group can meet its debt obligations for at least 12 months from the date of
authorisation of the financial statements, management has prepared a cash flow forecast for the financial year
ending 30 June 2026. Based on the forecast and having regard to the above, the directors believe that the Group
has sufficient working capital and financial resources to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due and continue as a going concern for at least 12 months from the date of authorisation of the financial
statements.

If the going concern assumption is not appropriate, adjustments will need to be made to reflect a situation
where the assets may need to be realised other than in the normal course of business and at amounts which
could be significantly different from the amounts stated in the statement of financial position of the Group and
statement of financial position of the Company. As a result, the Group and the Company may have to provide
for further liabilities which may arise, and to classify the non-current assets and non-current liabilities to current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would
result in the event the Group and the Company are unable to continue as going concerns.

Impairment review of film product

The Group and the Company carry out impairment review at the end of each reporting period to assess the
marketability and future economic benefits of its film product and the corresponding recoverable amount
based on its projected revenue. The Group and the Company estimate the recoverable amount for such film
product based primarily on its target market and business plan taking into consideration of the current market
conditions, the region of the release of the film, the length and number of rounds of distribution, the industry
practice for the credit terms extended to customers in that particular region, and the overall number of films
which are distributed in that particular region. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s film
product are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Significant judgement and estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group and the Company recognise liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will affect the current tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made. The Group’s income taxes for the year is disclosed in Note 22 to
the financial statements.
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Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Significant accounting estimates and assumptions used in applying accounting policies
Depreciation of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset

The costs of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated economic useful lives of the assets or based on the shorter period of lease term and useful life of
the right-of-use asset. Management estimates the useful lives of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset
to be 3 to 6 years and 2 years, respectively. The carrying amounts of the Group’'s and the Company's plant
and equipment and right-of-use asset at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 4,
respectively, to the financial statements. The estimation of useful lives is based on assumptions about wear
and tear, ageing, changes in demand and the Group’s and the Company's historical experience with similar
assets. The Group and the Company perform annual reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives
continue to be valid. As changes in the expected level of usage, maintenance programmes and technological
developments could affect the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, future depreciation
charges could be revised.

If depreciation on the Group’s and the Company's plant and equipment increases/decreases by 10% from
management's estimates, the Group’s and the Company’s loss for the year will increase/decrease by S$10,632/
S$15,469 and S$10,632/5%$15,469 (2024 - S$24,795/5$24,795), respectively. If depreciation on the Group's and the
Company's right-of-use asset increases/decreases by 10% from management's estimates, the Group's and the
Company's loss for the year will increase/decrease by S$50,866 and S$50,866 (2024 - S$61,695), respectively.

Impairment of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset

Plant and equipment and right-of-use asset are assessed at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any indication of impairment or that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods no longer exists or has
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the assets are estimated to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Significant judgement and estimates by management are required in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by its market value based on
comparable assets or the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based on the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurement and the key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are extrapolated using a suitable growth rate and then discounted using an appropriate
discount rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the level of impairment could
materially affect the recoverable amount determined in the impairment test and as a result may potentially
affect the Group’s and the Company’s results.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s plant and equipment and right-of-use asset at the end
of the reporting period and the basis used to determine fair value less costs of disposal are disclosed in Note 3
and Note 4, respectively, to the financial statements.

If the recoverable amount on the Group’s and the Company’s plant and equipment decreases by 10% from
management's estimates, the Group's and the Company's loss for the year will increase by S$1,063 and S$1,063
(2024 - no impairment), respectively. If the recoverable amount on the Group’s and the Company’s right-of-use
asset decreases by 10% from management's estimates, the Group’s and the Company's loss for the year will
increase by $$5,573 and S$5,573 (2024 - no impairment), respectively.
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Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Significant accounting estimates and assumptions used in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Allowance for expected credit losses of finance lease receivable, trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs") for finance lease
receivable, trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar risk characteristics. The provision matrix is initially based on the
Group’s and the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Group and the Company calibrates the matrix
to adjust historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At the end of each reporting period,
historical default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The Group and the Company apply the 3-stage general approach to determine ECLs for other receivables. ECL
is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage-1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage-2 or stage-3
assets. An asset moves from stage-1 to stage-2 when its credit risk increases significantly and subsequently to
stage-3 as it becomes credit-impaired. In assessing whether credit risk has significantly increased, the Group and
the Company consider qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.
Lifetime ECL represents ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument whereas 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL expected to result from default events
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast of economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s and the Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information relating
to ECLs on the Group’s and the Company’s finance lease receivable, trade and other receivables and contract
assets is disclosed in Note 28.1. If the loss rates increase by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s and
the Company’s allowance for impairment of trade receivables will increase by S$85,776 and S$98,529 (2024 -
S$44,523), respectively.

Adoption of New or Amended SFRS(I)s Effective in 2025
On 1 July 2024, the Group and the Company adopted the following new or amended SFRS(l)s that are mandatory

for application from that date. Changes to the Group’s and the Company's accounting policies have been made
as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective SFRS(I)s.

Reference Description

Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to SFRS(I) 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(

Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements
SFRS(I) 7

)
)
)
)

The adoption of these new or amended SFRS(l)s did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s and the
Company's accounting policies or have any significant impact on these financial statements.
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New or Amended SFRS(I)s Not Yet Adopted

The following are the new or amended SFRS(l)s issued that are not yet effective but may be early adopted for
the current financial year. However, the Group and the Company have not early adopted the new or amended
SFRS(l)s in preparing these financial statements:

Effective Date
(Annual Periods
Beginning on

Reference Description or After)

Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-21

Amendments to SFRS(I)
9 and SFRS(1) 7

Amendments to SFRS(I)
9 and SFRS(1) 7

Annual Improvements to SFRS(I)s - Volume 11
SFRS(1) 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
SFRS(1) 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027

Amendments to SFRS(I) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Yet to be
10 and SFRS(I) 1-28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture determined

Lack of Exchangeability
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

1 January 2025
1 January 2026

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity 1 January 2026

1 January 2026

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the above new or amended SFRS(l)s in future periods will
have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company in the period of their initial
adoption.

Material Accounting Policy Information
Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company (its subsidiary) made up to the reporting date each year. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° power over the investee;
° exposure, or rights or variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
° the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current

ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring the accounting
policies used into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the
members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiary is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary is accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as required/permitted by applicable SFRS(l)). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment
in net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or loss. On disposal of such investments, the
difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or
loss.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable

amounts over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Renovations Over the lease term of 3 to 6 years

Office equipment 5 years
Production equipment 3 years
Computers 3 years

The cost of plant and equipment includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of plant and equipment if the
obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the
asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure relating to plant and equipment that have been recognised is added to the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the standard of performance
of the asset before the expenditure was made will flow to the Group and the cost can be reliably measured.
Other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense during the period in which it is incurred.

For acquisitions and disposals during the period, depreciation is recognised in profit or loss from the month that
the plant and equipment are installed and are available for use, and to the month of disposal, respectively. Fully
depreciated plant and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

On disposal of an item of plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds and its carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period as a change in estimates.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets
are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and amortisation method are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

Intangible assets are written off where, in the opinion of the directors, no further future economic benefits are
expected to arise. The Group does not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Intangibles assets comprise computer software used in operations. The costs relating to computer software
acquired, which are not an integral part of the related hardware, are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of three years.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instruments.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial

position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not at FVTPL,
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third party if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component at initial
recognition. Refer to the accounting policy on “Revenue from contracts with customers”.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

- Financial assets at FVTPL
The Group does not hold any financial assets at FVOCI or financial assets at FVTPL.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or
impaired, and through amortisation process.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost comprise finance lease receivable, trade and other receivables
(excluding government grant receivable and net input tax) and cash and bank balances.

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset expire. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (“ECLs") associated with its debt
instrument financial assets carried at amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
(12-month ECLs). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (lifetime ECLs).

For trade receivables, finance lease receivable and contract assets, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of each reporting period. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other receivables, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are
estimated by reference to the track record of the counterparties and their businesses and financial condition.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

° significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

° a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

° it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
these assets.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise lease liabilities, borrowings and trade and other payables (excluding net
output tax).

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Borrowings

Borrowings which are due to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting period are included in current
borrowings in the statement of financial position if the loan facility agreements include an overriding repayment
on demand clause which gives the lender the right to demand repayment at any time at its sole discretion and
irrespective of whether a default event has occurred. These borrowings are classified as current because, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for at least
12 months after that date. Other borrowings due to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting period
are included in non-current borrowings in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If
the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from a customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liability is recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Contract costs

Costs incurred in fulfilling a contract which are within the scope of other SFRS(I)s are capitalised as contract costs
only if (a) these costs relate directly to a contract or an anticipated contract which the Group can specifically
identify; (b) these costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and (c) these costs are expected to be recovered.
Otherwise, such costs are recognised as an expense immediately.
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Contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are subsequently amortised on a systematic basis as the Group recognises the related
revenue over time. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
capitalised contract costs exceeds the expected remaining consideration less any directly related costs not yet
recognised as expenses.

Film product

Film product is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. The portion of film
product to be recovered through use, less estimated residual value and accumulated impairment loss, is
amortised based on the proportion of actual revenue earned during the period to its total projected revenue
as an approximation of the consumption of its economic benefits. Adjustment to amortisation is made as a
change in estimates if the projected revenue is different from the previous estimation or to reflect the actual
consumption of economic benefits, as appropriate.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and fixed deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term (generally
with maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares are deducted against the share capital account.

Provision

Provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision for restoration cost

A provision for restoration cost is recognised when the Group is legally obliged to dismantle physical
installations and to restore to its original state a property owned by external parties following decommissioning
of the Group's operating facilities at the property. The costs of dismantling and restoration are capitalised as
part of the Group's acquisition costs of the installations and are depreciated over their useful lives. The provision
is recognised as the present value of the aggregate future costs. Changes in the estimated timing or amount of
the expenditure or discount rate for asset dismantlement and restoration costs are adjusted against the cost of
the related installations, unless the decrease in the provision exceeds the carrying amount of the asset or the
asset has reached the end of its useful life. In such a case, the excess of the decrease over the carrying amount
of the asset, or the changes in the provision, is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low-value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease (including extension option) unless another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2025 87



NOTES T0 THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

2(d)

88

Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee. The incremental borrowing rate is defined
as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term and with a similar
security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
° exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to

terminate the lease.
The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost, by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset or to
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has already been reduced to nil) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

° the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used); or

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which

case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
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Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset comprises the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. It is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under SFRS(I) 1-37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-
of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Depreciation on right-of-use asset is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate its depreciable amount
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, as follows:

Leasehold property Lease term of 2 years
Right-of-use asset is presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

The Group applies SFRS(l) 1-36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all
of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, the lease is a finance
lease; if not, it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as
whether the lease is for a major part of the economic life of the asset.

Finance lease

The leased asset is derecognised and the present value of the lease receivable is recognised as finance lease
receivable in the statement of financial position. The difference between the gross receivable and the present
value of the lease receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease receivable to reduce
both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income is recognised in profit or loss on a
basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease receivable.

Any initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging finance leases are added to finance
lease receivable and reduce the amount of income recognised over the lease term.

Intermediate lessor in sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interest in the head lease and the sublease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies recognition exemption, it classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting or taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of deductible and taxable
temporary differences, arising from leases.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, provided they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is measured:

(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period; and

(i) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in profit or loss, except to the extent
that the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Value-added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value-added tax (“VAT"), except where the
VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authorities, in which case
the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable,
and except that trade receivables and trade payables are recorded with the amount of VAT included. The net
amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority is included as part of other receivables or
other payables in the statement of financial position.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), a defined contribution plan regulated and managed
by the Government of Singapore, which applies to the majority of the employees. A defined contribution plan
is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The contributions to CPF are charged to profit
or loss in the period to which the contributions relate.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. Accrual is made for the
unconsumed leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and the Company if that
person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iiiy  is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group and the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iiiy  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company
or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Company.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group. The directors and certain management executives are considered key
management personnel of the Group.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets subject to impairment are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the

asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assets belong will be identified.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately

identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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Material Accounting Policy Information (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs of disposal, and value in use, based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss
recognised for a cash-generating unit is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating unit. All assets are
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist or
may have decreased.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that the impairment loss previously recognised for
an asset may no longer exist or may have decreased, and there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognised.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss.
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from the sale of goods or rendering of services in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a promised good or service to the
customer. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation in the contract on the basis of the
relative stand-alone selling prices of the promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognised is the
amount of the transaction price allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services. When consideration is variable, the estimated amount
is included in the transaction price to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of the
cumulative revenue will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

Revenue may be recognised over time or at a point in time following the timing of satisfaction of the
performance obligation. If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised based on the
progress of completion towards the complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

A performance obligation is satisfied and control of service is transferred over time if (i) the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs; (ii) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (iii) the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

For such contracts, the customer is usually invoiced on a milestone payment schedule. The Group recognises a
contract asset for any work performed. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables when it is invoiced to the customer. If the milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date, the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

Otherwise, a performance obligation is satisfied and revenue is recognised at a point in time when the service
has been rendered and accepted by the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Production

Revenue from the production of television dramas and events is recognised over time as the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the
costs incurred to date in proportion to the total estimated costs, as an appropriate measure of progress of the
Group's performance.

Revenue from the production of media content is recognised at a point in time upon delivery to and acceptance
of the final product by the customer so that the customer can direct the use and obtain the associated benefits
of the product.

The Group has granted to a distributor the rights to distribute a film in a particular region for a certain period.
Revenue is recognised over time as the benefits from the distribution of film are simultaneously received and
consumed by the distributor. The Group is entitled to the share of the net amounts received by the distributor
from the distribution of the film for the period after deducting all expenses incurred in connection with the
distribution of the film.

Management and events

The Group manages artistes and revenue is derived from the artistes’ participation in events, advertisements,
television dramas, movies and other entertainment content projects. For contracts where the service of the
artistes is provided over a specified period, revenue is recognised over time based on the term of the contract
as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs. For contracts where the service of the artistes is provided on a specified event or project,
revenue is recognised at a point in time upon the performance of the artistes at the specified event or project.

For artistes’ participation in television dramas or movies, revenue is recognised over time based on the agreed
period of filming as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
Revenue from the production of marketing campaigns is recognised over time based on the specified term of
the campaign as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from the sale of gift products is recognised at a point in time when control has been transferred upon
delivery of the goods to the customer.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as a receivable at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grants will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government grants received are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the

related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants relating to
expenses are shown separately as other income.
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Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates (“functional currency”). The financial statements of the
Group are presented in Singapore Dollar, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Conversion of foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either other income or other expenses
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group's other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, who is the chief operating decision maker, to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 27 to the financial
statements, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of
segment information.

Segment results that are reported to the directors include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire plant and equipment and
right-of-use asset.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholder of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholder and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares which comprise convertible loan and convertible bonds. Contingently issuable ordinary shares are
treated as outstanding and included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share if the conditions are satisfied
(i.e. the events have occurred).
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Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2024
Depreciation (Note 21)
Write-off

Disposal

At 30 June 2025

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025

The Company

Cost

At 1 July 2023
Additions

At 30 June 2024
Write-off
Disposals

At 30 June 2025

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July 2023
Depreciation (Note 21)
At 30 June 2024
Depreciation

Write-off

Disposal

At 30 June 2025

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025

At 30 June 2024

Office Production
Renovations  Equipment Equipment Computers Total
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

856,061 27,589 96,036 122,521 1,102,207
(856,061) - - - (856,061)
- (2,950) - (4,758) (7,708)

- 24,639 96,036 117,763 238,438

728,091 22,947 88,344 97,489 936,871

127,970 2,043 7,496 17,183 154,692
(856,061) - - - (856,061)
- (2,938) - (4,758) (7,696)

- 22,052 95,840 109,914 227,806

- 2,587 196 7,849 10,632

Office Production
Renovations equipment equipment Computers Total
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

856,061 27,589 96,036 119,248 1,098,934

- - - 3,273 3,273
856,061 27,589 96,036 122,521 1,102,207
(856,061) - - - (856,061)
- (2,950) - (4,758) (7,708)

- 24,639 96,036 117,763 238,438

534,730 20,568 63,448 70,177 688,923
193,361 2,379 24,896 27,312 247,948

728,091 22,947 88,344 97,489 936,871
127,970 2,043 7,496 17,183 154,692
(856,061) - - - (856,061)
- (2,938) - (4,758) (7,696)

- 22,052 95,840 109,914 227,806

- 2,587 196 7,849 10,632
127,970 4,642 7,692 25,032 165,336
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Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Impairment testing of plant and equipment and right-of-use asset

In view of the net loss and net operating cash outflows incurred by the Group and the Company for the financial
years ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024, management has assessed that there are indications of impairment
of the plant and equipment and right-of-use asset. Accordingly, the assets are tested for impairment.

Management has engaged independent professional valuers to carry out valuations on the right-of-use asset
(2024 - plant and equipment and right-of-use asset) to determine their recoverable amount based on fair value
less costs of disposal, having considered the appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience of the
valuers in the location and category of the right-of-use asset (2024 - plant and equipment and right-of-use asset)
being valued. In determining the fair values of the plant and equipment, the valuers used the cost approach. In
determining the fair value of the right-of-use asset, the valuers used the market approach.

Based on the above, the Group and the Company has determined that the recoverable amounts of the assets
exceed their carrying amounts as at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024, and no impairment losses are required for
the financial years ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the Level 3 fair value hierarchy, as well as
the significant unobservable inputs used:

Inter-relationship
Between Key
Unobservable Inputs and

Valuation Method Basis Key Unobservable Inputs Fair Value Measurement

Plant and equipment
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Right-of-use Asset

Cost approach Depreciated
(applicable to 2024 only)  replacement cost

Right-of-use asset
Market approach

Current market
incremental
borrowing rate of
comparable lease

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED

Physical deterioration
and other forms of
obsolescence of the assets

Current market incremental
borrowing rate

A significant increase in
the physical deterioration
and other forms of
obsolescence of the assets
would result in a lower
fair value measurement,
and vice versa.

A significant increase
in market incremental
borrowing rate would
result in a lower fair
value measurement,
and vice versa.

Leasehold
Property
The Group s$
Cost
At 1 July 2024 3,286,578
Additions 193,520
Derecognition (3,286,578)
At 30 June 2025 193,520
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2024 2,832,107
Depreciation (Note 21) 508,656
Derecognition (3,286,578)
At 30 June 2025 54,185
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025 139,335
Leasehold
Property
The Company S$
Cost
At 1 July 2023 3,286,578
Additions 372,215
Transfer to finance lease receivable arising from sublease (372,215)
At 30 June 2024 3,286,578
Additions 193,520
Derecognition (3,286,578)
At 30 June 2025 193,520
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2023 2,215,154
Depreciation (Note 21) 616,953
At 30 June 2024 2,832,107
Depreciation 508,656
Derecognition (3,286,578)
At 30 June 2025 54,185
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025 139,335
At 30 June 2024 454,471

Details of the impairment testing performed in respect of the right-of-use asset are disclosed in Note 3 to the

financial statements.

Reconciliation of non-cash transactions

The additions for the financial year of $S$193,520 for the Group and S$193,520 (2024 - S$372,215) for the

Company were through lease financing.
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5 Intangible Asset

The Group

Cost
At 1 July 2024 and 30 June 2025

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2024
Amortisation (Note 21)

At 30 June 2025

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025

The Company

Cost

At 1 July 2023

Additions

At 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2025

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2023
Amortisation (Note 21)

At 30 June 2024
Amortisation

At 30 June 2025

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2025

At 30 June 2024

As at 30 June 2025, the intangible asset, used in operations, has a remaining amortisation period of 1.5 years

(2024 - 2.5 years).
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Computer
Software

S$

38,051

6,776
12,684
19,460

18,591

Computer
Software

S$

38,051
38,051

6,776
6,776
12,684
19,460

18,591
31,275
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Finance Lease Receivable

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Undiscounted lease payments to be received:
- Year 1 156,000 156,000 156,000
- Year 2 104,000 104,000 156,000
- Year 3 - - 104,000
260,000 260,000 416,000
Less: Unearned interest cost (10,458) (10,458) (25,889)
249,542 249,542 390,111
Represented by:
- Non-current 102,179 102,179 249,542
- Current 147,363 147,363 140,569
249,542 249,542 390,111

The finance lease receivable arises from entering into a head lease and a corresponding sublease of a retail
outlet at the same time at a higher amount.

The following table presents the amounts included in profit or loss:

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
Finance income on net investment in finance lease (Note 18) 15,431 10,012
Gain on sublease (Note 18) - 59,884

The carrying amount and fair value of finance lease receivable at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Carrying amount 249,542 249,542 390,111
Fair value 248,691 248,691 388,038

The fair value is determined from discounted cash flow analysis, using the discount rate based on the borrowing
rate which management expects would be available to the Company at the end of the reporting period of 5.25%
per annum.

Finance lease receivable is denominated in Singapore Dollar.
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7 Investment in Subsidiary
The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
Unquoted equity shares, at cost
At beginning of year - -
Additions 100 -
At end of year 100 -
As at 10 February 2025, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore, which is NTM
Masterpiece Pte. Ltd.
Details of the subsidiary is:
Country of
Incorporation/ Percentage
Principal Place  of Equity Held
Name Principal Activities of Business by The Group
2025
Held by the Company %
NTM Masterpiece Pte. Ltd.@ Plan and execute strategic promotion, Singapore 100
marketing, publicity and sponsorship
for Company- led commercial
activities, events and initiatives
(@) Incorporated on 10 February 2025 and exempted from audit for financial period from 10 February 2025 to 30 June 2025.
8 Trade and Other Receivables
The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Trade receivables
- Third parties 923,785 923,785 478,785
- Subsidiary - 127,530 -
923,785 1,051,315 478,785
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
At beginning of year (33,554) (33,554) -
Allowance made (32,474) (32,474) (33,554)
At end of year (66,028) (66,028) (33,554)
Trade receivables, net 857,757 985,287 445,231
Other receivables
- Third parties - - 150,148
- Subsidiary - 10,999 -
Deposits 238,051 238,051 400,701
Total trade and other receivables, at amortised cost 1,095,808 1,234,337 996,080

100
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The Company generally extends credit period of 30 days (2024 - 30 days) to customers, depending on the length
of business relationship, payment history, background and financial strength of the customers. The Company
actively reviews the trade receivable balances and follows up on outstanding debts with the customers.

The other receivables due from subsidiary represents expenses paid on behalf which is non-trade, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The credit risk for net trade receivables by geographical area based on the information to key management

team is as follows:

Singapore
Hong Kong
Republic of China

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

The Group

Not past due

Past due 1 to 30 days
Past due 31 to 60 days
Past due 61 to 90 days
Past due over 90 days

The Company

Not past due

Past due 1 to 30 days
Past due 31 to 60 days
Past due 61 to 90 days
Past due over 90 days

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
849,767 977,297 435,231
3,500 3,500 -
4,490 4,490 10,000
857,757 985,287 445,231
Allowance
for
Impairment
Gross Losses Net
2025 2025 2025
S$ S$ S$
154,960 - 154,960
61,327 - 61,327
604,460 - 604,460
32,520 - 32,520
70,518 (66,028) 4,490
923,785 (66,028) 857,757
Allowance Allowance
for for
Impairment Impairment
Gross Losses Net Gross Losses Net
2025 2025 2025 2024 2024 2024
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
282,490 - 282,490 246,254 - 246,254
61,327 - 61,327 872 - 872
604,460 - 604,460 91,463 - 91,463
32,520 - 32,520 28,932 - 28,932
70,518 (66,028) 4,490 111,264 (33,554) 77,710
1,051,315 (66,028) 985,287 478,785 (33,554) 445,231

Trade receivables that have been determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to debtors
that are in financial difficulties or have defaulted on payments. These trade receivables are not secured by any
collateral or credit enhancements.
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Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Based on historical default rates, the Group and the Company believe that no further impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of trade receivables as they mainly arise from customers that have a good credit record
with the Group and Company.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there has
not been a significant change in the credit quality. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Deposits mainly relate to a security deposit paid in relation to the leases of office and studio premises and retail
outlet and a tender deposit for a project. Subsequent to the reporting period, the deposit of S$186,033 relating
to the lease of office would be refunded and the restoration cost, for which the Group had initially made a
provision of S$100,000 in respect of the same lease, is waived by the landlord.

Trade and other receivables are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Contract assets 164,040 164,040 262,133
Contract liabilities (78,047) (78,047) (326,805)

As at 1 July 2023, the Group and the Company's contract assets and contract liabilities in respect of contracts
with customers amounted to S$150,962 and S$101,888, respectively.

The contract assets relate to the Group and the Company's rights to consideration for work completed but not
billed at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. This occurs when the Group and the Company invoices the customers.

The contract liabilities relate to the Group and the Company's obligations to perform services to customers for
which considerations are received from the customers. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group and the Company performs under the contracts.

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities balances are as follows:

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$

Contract assets recognised in trade receivables upon invoicing (722,117) (304,651)
Revenue recognised as contract assets during the year 624,024 415,822
Consideration received in advance, excluding amounts recognised as

revenue during the year (78,047) (326,805)
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at

beginning of the year 326,805 101,888

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED
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Contract Costs

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Costs to fulfil contracts 7,000 7,000 161,587

The Group and the Company incurs costs to fulfil contracts, including those of employees who provide the
promised services directly to the customers. The costs relate directly to the contract, generate resources that
will be used in satisfying the performance obligations in the contract, and are expected to be recovered. They
are therefore recognised as an asset arising from costs to fulfil a contract. The asset is recognised as expense at
point in time consistent with the recognition of the associated revenue.

Film Product

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Cost
At beginning of year 1,684,107 1,684,107 410,865
Transfer from film production in progress - - 1,273,242
At end of year 1,684,107 1,684,107 1,684,107
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year 448,042 448,042 410,865
Amortisation (Note 21) 66,050 66,050 37,177
At end of year 514,092 514,092 448,042
Accumulated impairment loss
At beginning of year 1,081,065 1,081,065 -
Impairment loss (Note 19) 80,950 80,950 1,081,065
1,162,015 1,162,015 1,081,065
Carrying amount
At beginning of year 155,000 155,000 -
At end of year 8,000 8,000 155,000

As at 30 June 2025, the film product is classified as current as it has an economic life of less than 12 months.

The amortisation of film product is included in cost of sales in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

In view of the actual performance of the film falling below expectations following its cinematic release during the
financial year ended 30 June 2025, the Group and the Company performed a review to assess the marketability
and future economic benefits of the film product and its corresponding recoverable amount. The estimated
recoverable amount as at 30 June 2025 was determined based on value in use computations using the projected
revenues to be derived from the film product which are expected to be received within a year. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of S$80,950 and S$80,950 (2024 - S$1,081,065), respectively, was recognised in the Group's and
the Company's profit or loss for the financial year ended 30 June 2025.
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12 Cash and Bank Balances

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Cash at banks 686,760 675,638 1,113,496
Fixed deposits - - 500,000
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of
cash flows 686,760 675,638 1,613,496

Cash at banks is held in current accounts and is non-interest bearing.

In 2024, the fixed deposits have a weighted-average maturity of 29 days from the end of the reporting period
with a weighted-average effective interest rate of 1.50% per annum.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

13 Share Capital

2025 2024 2025 2024
The Group and The Company Number of Ordinary Shares S$ S$
Issued and fully paid, with no par value
At beginning and at end of year 197,999,998 197,999,998 8,763,058 8,763,058

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and is entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All shares rank equally with regard to the Group and the
Company's residual assets.

14 Lease Liabilities

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Undiscounted lease payments due:
- Year 1 237,824 237,824 603,515
-Year 2 142,211 142,211 135,824
-Year 3 - - 91,211
380,035 380,035 830,550
Less: Unearned interest cost (14,735) (14,735) (16,928)
365,300 365,300 813,622
Represented by:
- Non-current 139,935 139,935 217,883
- Current 225,365 225,365 595,739
365,300 365,300 813,622
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Lease Liabilities (Continued)

The lease liabilities relate to the Group and the Company's office and studio premises and a retail outlet, which
are secured by the lessors' titles to the leased assets.

Interest expense on lease liabilities of $$22,381 (2024 - S$25,467) is recognised in profit or loss for the financial
year ended 30 June 2025 under finance costs (Note 20).

Total cash outflow for leases amounted to S$664,223 (2024 - S$789,917) for the financial year ended 30 June
2025.

Lease liabilities are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

Borrowings
The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$

Non-current
Director loan 550,000 550,000 -
Current
Bank loans - - 66,559

550,000 550,000 66,559
Bank loans

The terms and conditions of bank loans, which were fully repaid as at 30 June 2025, were as follows:

Carrying
Nominal Year of Amount
The Company Currency Interest Rate Maturity S$
2024
Bank loans (secured) SGD 6.50% - 9.80% 2024 66,559

The bank loans were secured by personal guarantees from certain directors of the Company.

The director loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand on or after 1 July 2026, if necessary,
depending on the cash flow requirements of the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company do
not expect repayment within the next 12 months from the date of authorisation of the financial statements
and accordingly, the loan is classified as non-current. The fair value is not determinable as the repayment date
depends on the cash flow requirements of the Group and the Company.

Subsequent to the reporting period, an additional loan of S$800,000 is provided to the Group and the Company
based on their cash flow requirements.

The borrowings are denominated in Singapore Dollar.
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16 Trade and Other Payables

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Trade payables to third parties 846,380 846,380 325,909
Accrued operating expenses 339,737 339,737 244,664
Accrued directors’ fees 120,000 120,000 120,000
Accrued staff costs 204,213 204,213 401,597
Deposits received 91,000 91,000 91,000
Other payables 76,271 76,248 317,240
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,677,601 1,677,578 1,500,410
Net output tax 39,907 39,907 35,673
Total trade and other payables 1,717,508 1,717,485 1,536,083

The credit period in respect of trade payables is mainly 30 days (2024 - 30 days).
As at 30 June 2025, other payables mainly relate to staff expense claims.

Trade and other payables are denominated in Singapore Dollar.

17 Revenue

The Group The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
Revenue from contracts with customers
At a point in time
- Production 4,537,215 2,593,568
- Management and events 938,860 922,991
5,476,075 3,516,559
Over time
- Management and events 420,634 411,582
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,896,709 3,928,141
Rental of studio premises 360,110 511,106
6,256,819 4,439,247
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Other Income

Finance income on net investment in finance lease (Note 6)
Foreign exchange gain, net

Gain on sublease (Note 6)

Government grants

Interest income from fixed deposits

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2025

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$

15,431 10,012
1,397 -
- 59,884
177,345 62,673
2,778 22,295
196,951 154,864

Government grants mainly relate to Progressive Wage Credit Scheme and Career Conversion Programmes
(2024 - Enterprise Development Grant and Productivity Solutions Grant).

Other Operating Expenses

Foreign exchange loss, net
Impairment loss on film product (Note 11)

Finance Costs

Interest expenses
- lease liabilities (Note 14)
- bank loans

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
- 3,938
80,950 1,081,065
80,950 1,085,003

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
22,381 25,467
1,286 13,750
23,667 39,217
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Loss Before Taxation

Note
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
Audit fee
Amortisation of film product 11
Amortisation of intangible asset 5
Depreciation of plant and equipment 3
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 4
Staff costs
Directors:

Directors’ fees

Directors’ remuneration other than fees:

- Salaries and other related costs

- Contributions to defined contribution plan
Total directors’ remuneration

Key management personnel (other than director):
- Salaries and other related costs
- Contributions to defined contribution plan

Total key management personnel compensation

Other than key management personnel:
- Salaries and other related costs
- Contributions to defined contribution plan

The Group The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
110,000 130,000
66,050 37,177
12,684 6,776
154,692 247,948
508,656 616,953
120,000 120,000
367,881 419,288
28,164 26,484
516,045 565,772
131,250 132,145
13,002 12,444
144,252 144,589
660,297 710,361
1,942,305 2,414,323

258,424 301,108
2,200,729 2,715,431
2,861,026 3,425,792

Depreciation of plant and equipment comprises is classified under administrative expenses.

Depreciation of right-of-use asset comprises is classified as administrative expenses.

Staff costs comprise S$1,791,953 (2024 - S$2,068,220) and S$1,069,073 (2024 - S$1,357,572) which are classified

under cost of sales and administrative expenses, respectively.

Taxation

Current taxation
- Current year

Deferred taxation
- Deferred tax assets written off

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED

The Group The Company
2025 2024
S$ S$
- 25,260
- 25,260
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Taxation (Continued)

The tax expense on the results of the financial year varies from the amount of income tax determined by
applying the Singapore statutory rate of income tax on loss before taxation as a result of the following:

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$

Loss before taxation (1,795,950) (3,781,479)
Tax at statutory rate of 17% (2024 - 17%) (305,312) (642,851)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 21,755 32,871
Deferred tax assets on temporary differences not recognised 286,052 609,980
Deferred tax assets written off - 25,260
Other (2,495) -

- 25,260

Non-deductible expenses mainly relate to depreciation of non-qualifying plant and equipment.

As at 30 June 2025, the Group has unutilised tax losses and capital allowance of approximately S$5,841,485
and S$880,237 respectively that are available for offset against future taxable profit of the companies in which
the losses arose, for which deferred tax asset of S$1,142,693 has not been recognised due to uncertainty of
its recoverability. The use of these unutilised tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and
compliance with certain provision of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the companies
operate.

Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share was based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholder of
S$1,795,950 (2024 - S$3,806,739) and the number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
Issued ordinary shares 197,999,998 197,999,998

Equity-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

In conjunction with the Company'’s listing on the Catalist of the SGX-ST, the Company adopted the NoonTalk
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “ESOS") which was approved by the Company’'s shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26 October 2022.

The objectives of the ESOS are as follows:

(a) foster an ownership culture within the Company which aligns the interests of the Company’'s employees
with the interests of shareholders;

(b) motivate participants to achieve key financial and operational goals of the Company and/or their
respective business units;

() make total employee remuneration sufficiently competitive to recruit and retain staff having skills that are
commensurate with the Company’'s ambition to become a world-class company; and

(d)  to attract potential employees with relevant skills to contribute to the Company and to create value for
shareholders.
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Equity-settled Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

The ESOS provides for the grant of share options to full-time employees and directors who have attained the
age of 21 years and hold such rank as may be designated by the Remuneration Committee (“ESOS participants”),
provided that none shall be an undischarged bankrupt or have entered into a composition with his creditors.

Controlling shareholders shall not be eligible to participate in the ESOS. However, the associates of the
controlling shareholders who meet the eligibility criteria of the above shall be eligible to participate in the
ESOS provided that (a) the participation of, and (b) the terms of each grant and the actual number of awards
granted under the ESOS, to a participant who is an associate of a controlling shareholder are approved by the
independent shareholders in separate resolutions for each such person.

Under the ESOS, the number of shares over which the Remuneration Committee may grant options on any date,
when added to the number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the ESOS, shall
not exceed 15% of the number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) on the day
preceding the date of the relevant grant.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to the exercise of the options
granted under the ESOS to participants who are associates of controlling shareholders shall not exceed 25% of
the total number of shares available under the ESOS.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued or transferred pursuant to the exercise of the options
granted under the ESOS to each participant who is an associate of a controlling shareholder shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares available under the ESOS.

Options granted with the exercise price set at market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in part at any
time, by an ESOS participant during the period commencing after the first anniversary of the date of grant
and expiring on the tenth anniversary of such date of grant (or such shorter period if so determined by the
Remuneration Committee).

Options granted with exercise price set at a discount to market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in
part at any time, by an ESOS participant during the period commencing after the second anniversary of the date
of grant and expiring on the tenth anniversary of such date of grant (or such shorter period if so determined by
the Remuneration Committee).

To date, there has been no award granted pursuant to the ESOS since its commencement.

Significant Related Party Transactions

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, there were no significant related party
transactions during the financial years ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024.

The directors are of the opinion that the related party transactions have been entered in normal course of
businesses and have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those
obtainable in transactions with third parties.

Leases

Where the Group is the lessee,

The Group leases its office and studio premises in Singapore for operations. The Group also leases a retail outlet
that is entirely subleased to a third party. The leases run for a period of three years, with an option to renew
the leases for another three years after that date. Lease payments are renegotiated every few years to reflect

market rentals. There are no externally imposed covenants on the lease arrangements.

The Group has recognised right-of-use asset and lease liabilities for the leases. Information about the leases for
which the Group is a lessee are presented in Note 4 and Note 14 to the financial statements.

A provision of S$100,000 has been recognised by the Group for costs expected to be incurred in restoring the

office and studio premises to their original condition at the end of the lease in accordance with the terms of the
lease agreement.
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Leases (Continued)
Where the Group is the lessee, (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss under SFRS(I) 16 are as follows:

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 20) 22,381 25,467

Where the Group is the intermediate lessor of sublease,
Operating lease

Operating leases, in which the Group acts as an intermediate lessor, relate to arrangements whereby it
subleases its studio premises to customers for events on short-term basis, ranging from one to four days.

These subleases are classified as operating leases because the sublease periods do not form a major part of the
remaining head lease.

The Group’s revenue from rental of studio premises is disclosed in Note 17.
Finance lease

The Group has entered into subleasing arrangement for the sublease of its entire retail outlet to a third party for
a period of three years. The lease is classified as finance lease as the lease term constitutes the entirety of the
lease term of the head lease.

The Group's finance lease receivable from the sublease arrangement as a lessor is disclosed in Note 6.

Operating Segments

The Group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. The
strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require
different marketing strategies.

For each of the strategic business unit, the Group’s Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, who is the
chief operating decision maker, monitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The Group's Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer reviews internal management reports at least on a monthly basis. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

(i) Production segment comprises the production of television dramas, film, events, marketing campaigns
and media content by the Group for third parties without the Group's branding.

(i) Management and events segment comprises the management of artistes as their talent management
agency, the production of events by the Group for third parties using the Group’s branding, the rendering
of management services, and the rental of studio premises.

There are no operating segments that have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Other operations relate to general corporate activities and others.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included in the following tables. Performance
is measured based on segment profit (before taxation and unallocated expenses), as included in the internal
management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, which in
certain respects, as explained in the following tables, is different from profit in the financial statements. Segment
profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.
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Operating Segments (Continued)
Major customers

The following are major customers with revenue equal to or more than ten percent of the Group's total revenue.

The Group The Company

2025 2024
S$ S$
Customer A 887,880 593,120
Customer B 999,700 -

Revenue from both customer A and B are attributed to the production segment.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group and the Company have documented financial risk management policies. These policies set out the
Group’s and the Company’s overall business strategies and its risk management philosophy. The Group and the
Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key
financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Group’s and the
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s and the Company's
financial performance.

The Group's and the Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group and the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group’s and the Company's activities. The Group and the Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

There has been no change to the Group's and the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

The Group and the Company do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes or to
hedge against fluctuations, if any, in interest rates and foreign exchange.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
Group and the Company to incur a financial loss. The Group’s and the Company's exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivable. For trade receivables,
the Group and the Company adopt the practice of dealing only with those customers of appropriate credit
history, and obtaining sufficient security where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. For other financial assets, the
Group and the Company adopt the policy of dealing only with high credit quality counterparties.

The Group’s and the Company's objective is to seek continual growth while minimising losses incurred due to
increased credit risk exposure.

The Group and the Company has established a credit policy under which the creditworthiness of each new
customer is evaluated individually before the Group and the Company grants credit to the customer. Credit
limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring
approval from the director. Payments will be required to be made upfront by customers which do not meet the
Group’s and the Company's credit requirements.

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

Amounts due from customers are closely monitored and reviewed on a regular basis to identify any non-
payment or delay in payment, and to understand the reasons, so that appropriate actions can be taken
promptly. Through on-going credit monitoring and existing collection procedures in place, credit risk is mitigated
substantially.

Amount not paid after the credit period granted will be considered past due. The credit terms granted to
customers are based on the Group’s and the Company's assessment of their creditworthiness and in accordance
with the Group’s and the Company’s policy.

The Group's trade receivables from third parties comprise one major debtor that represented 64% of trade
receivables. The Company's trade receivables from third parties comprise one major debtor (2024 - three major
debtors) that represented 56% (2024 - 42%) of trade receivables.

The Group and the Company has trade and other receivables, finance lease receivable, contract assets and cash
and bank balances that are subject to impairment under the expected credit loss (“ECL") model.

Trade receivables

The Group and the Company apply the SFRS(I) 9 simplified approach to measure ECLs which uses a lifetime ECL
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the trade receivables. The Group and the Company have identified the gross domestic
product of the countries in which it operates to be the most relevant factors and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, among others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group and the Company.

Other receivables

Loss allowance for other receivables is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs (stage 1 of the general
approach). The ECLs on other receivables are estimated by reference to track record of the counterparties,
their businesses and financial condition where information is available, and knowledge of any events or
circumstances impeding recovery of the amounts. At the end of the reporting period, no loss allowance for other
receivables is required.

Contract assets

Loss allowance for contract assets is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which is consistent with the
approach adopted for trade receivables. The contract assets relate mainly to contracts where the revenue has
been accrued ahead of billings to customers, which have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. At the end of the reporting period, no loss allowance for finance lease
receivable and contract assets is required.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

Finance lease receivable

Management estimates the loss allowance on finance lease receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
In determining the ECL on finance lease receivable, management takes into account the historical default
experience and the future prospects of the industry in which the lessee operates, as appropriate. The credit risk
associated with finance lease receivable is mitigated as they are secured over the leased asset. In consideration
of the above and that none of the finance lease receivable at the end of the reporting period is past due,
management has determined that no loss allowance is necessary in respect of finance lease receivable.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the financial
year in assessing the loss allowance for finance lease receivable.

Cash and bank balances

Cash is held with banks which are regulated. Impairment on cash and bank balances has been measured on the
12-month ECL basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group and the Company considers
that its cash and bank balances have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.
The amount of the allowance on cash and bank balances is negligible.

Exposure to credit risk

As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of
financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of
financial position.

The Group’s and the Company’s major classes of financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances. Cash is held with established financial institutions. Further details of credit risks on trade and
other receivables are disclosed in Note 8.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities

of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)
Liquidity Risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Contractual After One Year
Carrying Undiscounted Within but Within
Amount Cash Flows One Year Five Years
The Group S$ S$ S$ S$
2025
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) 365,300 380,035 237,824 142,211
Borrowings (Note 15) 550,000 550,000 - 550,000
Trade and other payables (Note 16) 1,677,601 1,677,601 1,677,601 -
2,592,901 2,607,636 1,915,425 692,211
The Company
2025
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) 365,300 380,035 237,824 142,211
Borrowings (Note 15) 550,000 550,000 - 550,000
Trade and other payables (Note 16) 1,677,578 1,677,578 1,677,578 -
2,592,878 2,607,613 1,915,402 692,211
2024
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) 813,622 830,550 603,515 227,035
Borrowings (Note 15) 66,559 71,489 71,489 -
Trade and other payables (Note 16) 1,500,410 1,500,410 1,500,410 -
2,380,591 2,402,449 2,175,414 227,035

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis of the Group and the Company could
occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

The Group and the Company ensures that there are adequate funds to meet all its obligations in a timely and
cost-effective manner. The Group and the Company maintains sufficient levels of cash and bank balances and
obtains adequate financial support from the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group and the
Company as and when required to meet its working capital requirements.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Finance lease receivable, fixed deposits, lease liabilities and bank loans bear interest at fixed rates. All other
financial assets and liabilities are interest-free.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of the interest-bearing financial instruments is as
follows:

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
- finance lease receivable (Note 6) 249,542 249,542 390,111
- fixed deposits (Note 12) - - 500,000
249,542 249,542 890,111
Financial liabilities
- lease liabilities (Note 14) (365,300) (365,300) (813,622)
- bank loans (Note 15) - - (66,559)
(365,300) (365,300) (880,181)
(115,758) (115,758) 9,930

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets or liabilities at FVTPL. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

The Group’s and the Company’'s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available without
increasing its interest rate exposure.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.

As there are no significant transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the Group and the Company, Singapore Dollar, the Group and the Company are not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.

Market Price Risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices.
The Group and the Company do not hold any quoted or marketable financial instruments, hence, is not exposed
to any movement in market prices.

Capital Management

The Group's and the Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

(@)  To safeguard the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

(b)  To support the Group’s and the Company's stability and growth;

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group's and the Company’s risk management
capability; and

(d)  To provide an adequate return to the shareholders.
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Capital Management (Continued)

The Group and the Company actively and regularly review and manage the capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of the Group
and the Company, and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities. The Group and the Company
currently do not adopt any formal dividend policy.

There were no changes in the Group’s and the Company’s approach to capital management during the financial
year.

The Group and the Company are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Group and the Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital

plus net debt. Net debt comprises lease liabilities, borrowings and trade and other payables, less cash and bank
balances. Total capital represents total equity.

The Group The Company
2025 2025 2024
S$ S$ S$
Lease liabilities (Note 14) 365,300 365,300 813,622
Borrowings (Note 15) 550,000 550,000 66,559
Trade and other payables (Note 16) 1,717,508 1,717,485 1,536,083
Total debt 2,632,808 2,632,785 2,416,264
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 12) (686,760) (675,638) (1,613,496)
Net debt 1,946,048 1,957,147 802,768
Total equity 396,881 269,351 1,399,069
Total capital 2,342,929 2,226,498 2,201,837
Gearing ratio 83% 88% 36%

Financial Instruments
Accounting classifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in each category are as follows:

Financial Financial
Assets at Liabilities at
Amortised Amortised
Cost cost Total
The Group S$ S$ S$
2025
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) 249,542 - 249,542
Trade and other receivables (Note 8) 1,095,808 - 1,095,808
Cash and bank balances (Note 12) 686,760 - 686,760
2,032,110 - 2,032,110
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) - 365,300 365,300
Borrowings (Note 15) - 550,000 550,000
Trade and other payables (Note 16) - 1,677,601 1,677,601
- 2,592,901 2,592,901
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Accounting classifications of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial Financial
Assets at Liabilities at
Amortised Amortised
Cost cost Total
The Company S$ S$ S$
2025
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) 249,542 - 249,542
Trade and other receivables (Note 8) 1,234,337 - 1,234,337
Cash and bank balances (Note 12) 675,638 - 675,638
2,159,517 - 2,159,517
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) - 365,300 365,300
Borrowings (Note 15) - 550,000 550,000
Trade and other payables (Note 16) - 1,677,578 1,677,578
- 2,592,878 2,592,878
2024
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) 390,111 - 390,111
Trade and other receivables (Note 8) 996,080 - 996,080
Cash and bank balances (Note 12) 1,613,496 - 1,613,496
2,999,687 - 2,999,687
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities (Note 14) - 813,622 813,622
Borrowings (Note 15) - 66,559 66,559
Trade and other payables (Note 16) - 1,500,410 1,500,410
- 2,380,591 2,380,591

Fair values

SFRS(I) 13, Fair Value Measurement defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but approximate fair values

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year, comprising finance
lease receivable, trade and other receivables (excluding government grant receivable and net input tax), cash
and bank balances, borrowings and trade and other payables (excluding net output tax), or those which reprice
regularly, approximate their fair values because of the short period to maturity or repricing. The fair value of
non-current financial assets and liabilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate available to the Group and the Company for similar financial instruments.

The fair value disclosure of lease liabilities is not required and for the director loan is not determinable.

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed *

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Group S$ S$ S$ S$
2025
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) - 248,691 - 248,691
The Company
2025
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) - 248,691 - 248,691
2024
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable (Note 6) - 388,038 - 388,038
* Exclude financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts measured on the amortised cost basis approximate their fair

values due to their short-term or repayable on demand nature and where the effect of discounting is immaterial

Comparative Figures

The Company incorporated a new subsidiary on 10 February 2025, and this being the first set of consolidated
financial statements, there are no comparative figures for the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2024.
The comparative information refers to the financial information of the separate financial statements of the
Company, which also represents the Group.
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STATISTICS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 8 October 2025

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP CAPITAL:
NUMBER OF SHARES ISSUED:

CLASS OF SHARES:

VOTING RIGHTS:

$$9,040,000
197,999,998
ORDINARY SHARES
ONE VOTE PER SHARE

NO. OF TREASURY SHARES AND SUBSIDIARY HOLDINGS: Nil

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %

1-99 0 0.00 0 0.00
100 - 1,000 65 18.68 54,200 0.03
1,001 - 10,000 182 52.30 1,181,900 0.60
10,001 - 1,000,000 94 27.01 7,708,480 3.89
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 7 2.01 189,055,418 95.48
TOTAL 348 100.00 197,999,998 100.00

TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS

NO. OF SHARES

% OF SHARES

0 N O Ul WN =

N = —a & a3 a8 s O
O VW oo NOoO Ul b WN — O
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CGS INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD

TEO HONG HEE

LIN POH KIM

MOOMOO FINANCIAL SINGAPORE PTE. LTD.
UNION ENERGY CORPORATION PTE LTD
TAN BEE KHIN

KOH CHEW CHEE

TOO AH KIT

YAP WEE SIONG, THOMAS (YE WEIXIONG)
EDNA KO POH THIM

KOH ALICE

YEO POH BOON

LAU TZE LENG

LIM YI XIANG

LIM SIEW LAY (LIN XIULI)

TIGER BROKERS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
NG YEW NAM

LEVIN LEE KENG WENG

PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD

TOTAL

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED

175,813,078 88.79
2,523,700 1.28
2,342,207 1.18
2,272,727 1.15
2,166,800 1.09
2,000,000 1.01
1,936,906 0.98

891,890 0.45
448,000 0.23
448,000 0.23
380,000 0.19
379,590 0.19
366,400 0.18
313,100 0.16
251,800 0.13
250,000 0.13
234,100 0.12
200,000 0.10
188,700 0.09
177,400 0.09
193,584,398 97.77

STATISTICS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 8 October 2025

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(as shown in the Company's register of Substantial Shareholders)

DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES % NO. OF SHARES %
Dasmond Koh Chin Eng™ - - 123,844,288 62.55
Xun TingTing 10,803,300 5.46 - -
Note:

(1)  The 123,844,288 shares are held in the name of his nominee CGS International Securities Singapore Pte Ltd.

Public Shareholdings
Based on the information available to the Company as at 8 October 2025, approximately 28.34% of the Company's

issued ordinary shares are held in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the Company has complied with Rule 723 of the
Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist issued by SGX-ST.
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company will be held at One Farrer
Hotel (Level 6, Napier Room) located at 1 Farrer Park Station Road Singapore 217562 on Friday, 31 October 2025 at
10.00 a.m. for the purpose of transacting the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2025, together with the Directors’ Statement and Auditor’s Report thereon.

To approve the Directors’ fees of up to S$120,000 for the financial year ended 30 June 2025
(FY2024: S$120,000).

To re-elect Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda, a Director retiring pursuant to Regulation 110 of the
Company's Constitution.
(See Explanatory Note 1)

To re-elect Mr Zheng Xianbin, a Director retiring pursuant to Regulation 110 of the Company's
Constitution.
(See Explanatory Note 2)

To re-appoint Foo Kon Tan LLP as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an AGM.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the following Ordinary Resolutions, with or without
modifications:

7.

124

Authority to allot and issue shares

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Rule 806 of the Listing
Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the
“SGX-ST") (“Catalist Rules”), the Directors of the Company be authorised and empowered to:

(1 (i) allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) whether by way of
rights, bonus or otherwise; and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that
might or would require Shares to be issued, including but not limited to the
creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) options, warrants, debentures or
other instruments convertible into Shares, at any time and upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in
their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(1) (notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be
in force) issue Shares in pursuance of any Instruments made or granted by the Directors
while this Resolution was in force,

provided that:

(a) the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including
Shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this
Resolution), shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the total number of
issued Shares in the capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings) (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below), of which the
aggregate number of Shares to be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to the existing
members of the Company (including Shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments
made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the
total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) (as
calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below);

NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED
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(b)  (subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the
purpose of determining the aggregate number of Shares (including Shares to be issued
in pursuance of the Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) that may
be issued under sub-paragraph (a) above, the percentage of the issued Shares shall be
based on the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings) at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(i) new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities;

(i) new Shares arising from the exercise of share options or vesting of share awards
which are outstanding and/or subsisting at the time of the passing of this
Resolution, provided the share options or share awards (as the case may be) were
granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Catalist Rules; and

(iii) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares;

Any adjustments made in accordance with sub-paragraphs (b)(i) or (b)(ii) above shall only be
made in respect of new Shares arising from convertible securities and Instruments which were
issued and outstanding and/or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution.

() in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with
the provisions of the Catalist Rules for the time being in force (unless such compliance
has been waived by the SGX-ST), all applicable legal requirements under the Act and the
Constitution for the time being of the Company; and

(d) the authority conferred by this Resolution shall, unless revoked or varied by the
Company in general meeting, continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next
AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by
law to be held, whichever is earlier.

(See Explanatory Note 3)

Authority to allot and issue shares under the NoonTalk Employee Share Option Scheme

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, the Directors of the Company be authorised and
empowered to offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the NoonTalk
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) and to allot and issue from time to time such
Shares as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options granted or to
be granted under the Scheme, provided always that the aggregate number of Shares issued
and issuable in respect of all options granted or to be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares
and subsidiary holdings of the Company.

(See Explanatory Note 4)

By Order of the Board

Nor Hafiza Alwi
Company Secretary
16 October 2025

Resolution 7
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Explanatory Notes:

1. Ordinary Resolution 3 - Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda (“Dr Lynda Wee"), an Independent and Non-Executive Director of the
Company, will upon re-election as a Director, continue to serve as the Board Chairman, Chairman of the Nominating Committee
and a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees. Dr Lynda Wee is considered independent for the purpose of Rule
704(7) of the Catalist Rules.

Dr Lynda Wee does not have any relationship, including immediate family relationships with the other Directors, the Company
and the substantial shareholders, which may affect her independence.

2. Ordinary Resolution 4 - Mr Zheng Xianbin (“Mr Jed Tay”) will upon re-election, continue to serve as the Executive Director
and Chief Operating Officer (“CO0") of the Company. Mr Jed Tay does not have any relationship, including immediate family
relationships with the other Directors, the Company and the substantial shareholders.

Further information on all the above-mentioned directors can be found under the sections titled “Board of Directors”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Key Information” of the Company’s FY2025 Annual Report.

3. Ordinary Resolution 6 above, if passed, will authorise the Directors of the Company from the date of the forthcoming AGM until
the date of the next AGM of the Company, or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held, or
the date such authority is varied or revoked by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is earlier, to issue and allot shares
and convertible securities in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 100% of the total number of issued
Shares, excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings of which the total number of Shares issued other than on a pro-rata
basis to existing members shall not exceed 50% of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. Rule 806(3) of the Catalist Rules currently
provides for the percentage of the total number of issued shares, excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings, to be
calculated on the basis of the total number of issued shares at the time that the Resolution is passed (taking into account the
conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or employee share options at the time that the Resolution is passed, which
were issued pursuant to previous member approval), adjusted for any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of
shares. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the next AGM of the Company.

4. Ordinary Resolution 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors to grant options and to allot and issue Shares upon the
exercise of such options granted or to be granted in accordance with the Scheme provided that the number of Shares which
the Directors may allot and issue under this Resolution, together with any Shares issued and issuable in respect of all options
granted or to be granted under the Scheme, shall not, in aggregate, exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of issued
Shares excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings of the Company from time to time.

Notes:

1. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together with the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed (if
applicable) or a notarial certified copy thereof, must:

(@) if sent personally or by post, be lodged at the office of the Company’'s Share Registrar, B.A.C.S. Private Limited, at 77
Robinson Road, #06-03 Robinson 77, Singapore 068896; or

(b)  if submitted by email, be received by the Company's Share Registrar, B.A.C.S. Private Limited at main@zicoholdings.com.

in either case, by 10:00 a.m. on 28 October 2025, being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for
holding the Meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

Members are strongly encouraged to submit Proxy Forms electronically via email.

3. A member (who is not a Relevant Intermediary) who is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint not more
than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Where a member appoints
more than one proxy, he/she should specify the proportion of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to
be represented by each proxy, and if no percentage is specified, the first named proxy shall be treated as representing 100 per
cent of the shareholding and the second named proxy shall be deemed to be an alternate to the first named.

4, A member who is a Relevant Intermediaries as defined under Section 181(6) of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Companies Act")
is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to different shares held by the member. In such event, the Relevant Intermediary shall submit a list
of its proxies together with the information required in this proxy form to the Company.

5. An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme (“CPF Investor”) and/or the Supplementary
Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”) (as may be applicable) may attend and cast his vote(s) at the AGM in person. CPF and SRS
Investors who are unable to attend the AGM but would like to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their proxy should approach
their respective CPF Agent Banks or SRS Operators, through which they hold such shares, to submit their votes at least seven (7)
working days before the AGM that is by 10.00 a.m. on 22 October 2025, in order to allow sufficient time for their respective CPF
Agent Banks or SRS Operators to in turn submit the Proxy Forms to appoint the Chairman of the AGM to vote on their behalf no
later than the Proxy Deadline.
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6. A member of the Company, which is a corporation, is entitled to appoint its authorised representative or proxy to vote on its
behalf. The instrument appointing the proxy shall be either given under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an attorney
or a duly authorised officer of the corporation. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by an attorney
on behalf of the appointor, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must be lodged with the instrument
of proxy. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as
it thinks fit to act as its representative at the AGM.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

7. Printed copies of this notice of AGM (the “Notice”), Proxy Form and the Request Form (to request a printed copy of
the Annual Report) (the “Documents”) have been published and are available for download and online viewing by
the shareholders on the Company's website at URL:https://noontalk.com/investor-relations/ or the SGX website at
URL: https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-announcements .

Printed copies of the FY2025 Annual Report will not be mailed to the shareholders unless requested by the shareholder
pursuant to a submitted request. Shareholders who wish to receive a printed copy of the FY2025 Annual Report are required
to complete the Request Form and email it to the Company Share Registrar at email address: main@zicoholdings.com or mail
the physical copy to the office of the Company Share Registrar at 77 Robinson Road #06-03 Robinson 77, Singapore 068896 by
24 October 2025.

8. Members of the Company may participate in the AGM by:
(@) attending the AGM in person;
(b)  raising questions at the AGM or submitting questions in advance of the AGM; and/or
(c)  voting at the AGM (i) themselves personally; or (ii) through their duly appointed proxy(ies).

Please bring along your NRIC/passport so as to enable the Company to verify your identity. Members are requested to arrive
early to facilitate the registration process.

9. Members of the Company may submit questions relating to the resolutions to be tabled for approval at the AGM in advance,
within seven (7) calendar days from the date of this Notice of AGM (i.e. by 23 October 2025) (the “Cut-Off Date”), in the following
manner:

(@) email to ir@noontalk.com; or
(b)  mail to the Company's registered office at 1 Harvey Road, #04-01, Tan Heng Lee Building, Singapore 369610.

The Company will endeavour to address all substantial and relevant questions from members and publish its response on
SGXNet and the Company's website on or before 26 October 2025. Where substantially similar questions are received, the
Company may consolidate such questions, and consequently, not all questions may be individually addressed. The Company
will address any subsequent clarifications sought or substantial and relevant follow-up questions received after the Cut-Off
Date which have not already been addressed prior to the AGM, at the AGM itself. For questions addressed during the AGM, the
responses to such questions will be included in the minutes of the AGM, which will be published on the Company’s website and
SGXNet within one (1) month after the AGM.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting a proxy form appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the AGM and/or any
adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data
by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and
representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance
lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its
agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that
where the member discloses the personal data of the member's proxy(ies) and/or representatives(s) to the Company (or its agents),
the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representatives(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the
Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representatives(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the
member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the
member’s breach of warranty.

This Notice has been reviewed by the Company’s Sponsor, Evolve Capital Advisory Private Limited. It has not been examined or approved by the
Exchange and the Exchange assumes no responsibility for the contents of this Notice, including the correctness of any of the statements or opinions
made or reports contained in this Notice.

The contact person for the Sponsor is Mr Jerry Chua (Tel: (65) 6241 6626), at 160 Robinson Road, #20-01/02 SBF Center, Singapore 068914.
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Key information regarding the Retiring Directors who have been nominated for re-election as Directors of the Company

are set out below:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-ELECTION

Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay")

Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay")

Date of Initial Appointment

27 October 2022

27 October 2022

Working experience
and occupations during
the past 10 years

Please refer to the Board of Directors section in the Company’'s FY2025 Annual

Report.

Date of last re-appointment
(if applicable)

23 October 2023

23 October 2023

Age

61

35

Shareholding interest in the listed
issuer and its subsidiaries

Dr Lynda Wee holds a direct
interest in 200,000 ordinary
shares in the Company.

Mr Jed Tay holds a direct
interest in 7,020,000 ordinary
shares in the Company.

Country of principal residence

Singapore

Singapore

The Board’s comments on the
appointment (including rationale,
selection criteria, and the search
and nomination process)

The re-election of Dr Lynda Wee
as the Independent Director of the
Company was recommended by
the Nominating Committee (“NC")
and the Board has accepted the
recommendation, after taking into
consideration her qualifications,
expertise, past experiences

and overall contribution.

The re-election of Mr Jed Tay as
the Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer (“CO0O") of the
Company was recommended by
the Nominating Committee (“NC")
and the Board has accepted the
recommendation, after taking into
consideration his qualifications,
expertise, past experiences

and overall contribution.

Any relationship (including
immediate family relationships
with any existing director, existing
executive officer, the issue
and/or substantial shareholder

of the listed issuer or of any

of its principal subsidiaries)

Nil

Nil

Conflict of interest (including
any competing business)

Nil

Nil

Whether the appointment
is executive, and if so, the
area of responsibility

Non-executive

Executive

Mr Jed Tay is responsible to manage
the daily business operations. He
oversees business development

as well as multimedia, production
and event management.

Undertaking (in the format set out in
Appendix 7H) under Rule 720(1) has
been submitted to the listed issuer

Yes

Yes

Job Title (e.g., Lead ID, AC
Chairman, AC Member etc.)

Non-Executive Chairman and
Independent Director, Chairman
of the Nominating Committee and
member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer

Professional qualifications

Bachelor of Business Administration,
National University of Singapore

Bachelor of Science,
Management (University Highest
Honours), Southern Illinois
University Carbondale

Master of Business
Administration, Southern lllinois
University Carbondale

Doctor of Philosophy,
University of Stirling

Senior Practising Management
Consultant, Singapore Business
Advisors & Consultants

Council Associate

Diploma in Motion Graphics &
Broadcast Design with Merit
from the Nanyang Polytechnic

Accredited Director, Singapore
Institute of Directors

Present Principal Commitment*
including directorship

“Principal Commitment” has the
same meaning as defined in the
Code and includes all commitments
which involve significant time
commitment such as full-time
occupation, consultancy work,
committee work, non-listed
company board representations
and directorship and involvement
in non-profit organisations.

Non-Public Listed

1. Bootstrap Pte Ltd
2. Director, Growth Mindset Pte Ltd

3. Advisor, Sustainability Capability
Development Committee,
Singapore Environment Council

4. Adjunct Associate Professor,
Nanyang Business School,
Nanyang Technological University

Nil

Past Principal Commitments for the | Nil NoonTalk Events Pte Ltd
last 5 years, including directorship
(a) Whether at any time during the | No No

last 10 years, an application or
a petition under any bankruptcy
law of any jurisdiction was filed
against him/her or against a
partnership of which he/she was
a partner at the time when he/
she was a partner or at any time
within 2 years from the date he/
she ceased to be a partner?
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Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay")

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-ELECTION

(b) Whether at any time during the
last 10 years, an application
or a petition under any law
of any jurisdiction was filed
against an entity (not being a
partnership) of which, he/she
was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive, at
the time when he/she was
a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive of
that entity or at any time within
2 years from the date he/she
ceased to be a director or an
equivalent person or a key
executive of that entity, for the
winding up or dissolution of
that entity or, where that entity
is the trustee of a business
trust, that business trust, on
the ground of insolvency?

No

No

Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay")

(f) Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, judgment
has been entered against him/
her in any civil proceedings
in Singapore or elsewhere
involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore
or elsewhere, or a finding of
fraud, misrepresentation or
dishonesty on his/her part, or
he/she has been the subject of
any civil proceedings (including
any pending civil proceedings
of which he/she is aware)
involving an allegation of
fraud, misrepresentation or
dishonesty on his/her part?

No

No

(c) Whether there is any
unsatisfactory judgment
against him/her?

No

No

(d) Whether he/she has ever
been convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving fraud or dishonesty
which is punishable with
imprisonment, or has been
the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he/she is aware)
for such purpose?

No

No

(g) Whether he/she has ever
been convicted in Singapore
or elsewhere of any offence
in connection with the
formation or management of
any entity or business trust?

No

No

(h) Whether he/she has ever
been disqualified from acting
as a director or an equivalent
person of any entity (including
the trustee of a business trust),
or from taking part directly or
indirectly in the management
of any entity or business trust?

No

No

(e) Whether he/she has ever
been convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities
or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere,
or has been the subject of
any criminal proceedings
(including any pending criminal
proceedings of which he/she
is aware) for such breach?

No

No

(i) Whether he/she has ever
been the subject of any order,
judgment or ruling of any
court, tribunal or governmental
body, permanently or
temporarily enjoining him/her
from engaging in any type of
business practice or activity?

No

No
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Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay")

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-ELECTION

(j)): Whether he/she has ever, to his/
her knowledge, been concerned
with the management or
conduct, in Singapore or
elsewhere, of the affairs of:

(i) any corporation which
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing corporations in
Singapore or elsewhere; or

(ii) any entity (not being a
corporation) which has
been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing such entities in
Singapore or elsewhere; or

(iii) any business trust which
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing business trusts in
Singapore or elsewhere; or

(iv) any entity or business trust
which has been investigated
for a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities
or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere in
connection with any matter
occurring or arising during
that period when he/she
was so concerned with the
entity or business trust?

No

No

Name of Director

Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda
(“Dr Lynda Wee")

Mr Zheng Xianbin
(“Mr Jed Tay”)

Any prior experience as a
director of an issuer listed on
the Exchange? (Yes/No)

If yes, please provide details
of prior experience.

If no, please state if the
director has attended or will
be attending training on the
roles and responsibilities of a
director of a listed issuer as
prescribed by the Exchange.

Please provide details of relevant
experience and the nominating
committee’s reasons for not
requiring the director to undergo
training as prescribed by the
Exchange (if applicable).

Not applicable.

This is a re-election of a director.

Not applicable.

This is a re-election of a director.

(k) Whether he/she has been the
subject of any current or past
investigation or disciplinary
proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any
warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any
other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or
government agency, whether
in Singapore or elsewhere?

No

No
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NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED IMPORTANT:

(Company Registration No.: 201108844H) 1. An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund Investment
| ted in the R blic of Si Scheme (“CPF Investor”) and/or the Supplementary Retirement Scheme (“SRS
( ncorporatea in theé Republic o Ingapore) Investors”) (as may be applicable) may attend and cast his vote(s) at the Annual

General Meeting in person. CPF and SRS Investors who are unable to attend the
Annual General Meeting but would like to vote, may inform their CPF and/or SRS
Approved Nominees to appoint the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting to

ANNUAL GENERAL M EETING act as their proxy, in which case, the CPF and SRS Investors shall be precluded

from attending the Annual General Meeting.

PROXY FORM i X 2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF and SRS Investors and shall be
(Please see notes overleaf before complet/ng this Proxy Form) ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

I/'We, (Name), (NRIC/Passport/Company Registration No.)
of (Address)

being a *member/members of NOONTALK MEDIA LIMITED (the “Company”), hereby appoint(s):

Name Address NRIC/Passport No. | Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares %

and/or (delete as appropriate)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy/proxies to attend, speak and vote for me/us on
my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM" or the “Meeting”) of the Company to be held at One Farrer Hotel
(Level 6, Napier Room) located at 1 Farrer Park Station Road Singapore 217562 on Friday, 31 October 2025 at 10.00
a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

All Resolutions put to the vote at the AGM shall be decided by way of poll.
I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against or to abstain from voting on the resolutions to be proposed at

the AGM as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from
voting at his/their discretion, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

No. |Ordinary Resolutions For Against | Abstain
1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended

30 June 2025, together with the Directors’ Statement and the Auditors’ Report

thereon.

2. Approval of Directors’ fees of up to S$120,000 for the financial year ended
30 June 2025 (FY2024: S$120,000).

3. Re-election of Dr Wee Keng Neo Lynda as a Director of the Company.

Re-election of Mr Zheng Xianbin as a Director of the Company.

5. Re-appointment of Foo Kon Tan LLP as Auditors of the Company and to
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Authority to allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company.

7. Authority to allot and issue shares under the NoonTalk Employee Share Option
Scheme.

If you wish to exercise all your votes “For”, “Against” or to “Abstain” on the relevant Resolutions, please mark an “X” in the
appropriate box provided. Alternatively, please indicate the number of votes “For” or “Against”, or “Abstain” each Resolution in
the boxes provided as appropriate.

Dated this day of 2025.

Total no. of Shares in | No. of Shares
(a) Depository Register

(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal of Corporate Member(s)

* Delete where inapplicable

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES FOR PROXY FORM OVERLEAF



NOTES FOR PROXY FORM

10.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A member should insert the total number of shares held. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository
Register (as defined in Section 81SF of the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore), he should insert that number of
shares. If the member has shares registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, he should insert the
number of shares. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register and shares registered in his
name in the Register of Members of the Company, he should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted,
this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by the member of the Company.

A member (who is not a Relevant Intermediary) who is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint not more
than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Where a member appoints
more than one proxy, he/she should specify the proportion of his/her shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to
be represented by each proxy, and if no percentage is specified, the first named proxy shall be treated as representing 100 per
cent of the shareholding and the second named proxy shall be deemed to be an alternate to the first named.

A member who is a Relevant Intermediaries as defined under Section 181(6) of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Companies Act")
is entitled to appoint more than two proxies to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to different shares held by the member. In such an event, the Relevant Intermediary shall submit a
list of its proxies together with the information required in this proxy form to the Company.

“Relevant Intermediary” means:

a. a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act 1970 or a wholly owned subsidiary of such a banking corporation,
whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity;

b. a person holding a capital markets services licence to provide custodial services for securities under the Securities and
Futures Act 2001 and who holds shares in that capacity; or

C. the Central Provident Fund Board (“CPF Board”) established by the Central Provident Fund Act 1953, in respect of shares
purchased under the subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the
contributions and interest standing to the credit of Shareholders of the Central Provident Fund, if the CPF Board holds
those shares in the capacity of an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with that subsidiary legislation.

An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund Investment Scheme (“CPF Investor”) and/or the Supplementary
Retirement Scheme (“SRS Investors”) (as may be applicable) may attend and cast his vote(s) at the AGM in person. CPF and SRS
Investors who are unable to attend the AGM but would like to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their proxy should approach
their respective CPF Agent Banks or SRS Operators, through which they hold such shares, to submit their votes at least seven (7)
working days before the AGM that is by 10.00 a.m. on 22 October 2025, in order to allow sufficient time for their respective CPF
Agent Banks or SRS Operators to in turn submit the Proxy Forms to appoint the Chairman of the AGM to vote on their behalf no
later than the Proxy Deadline.

This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF and SRS Investors and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or
purported to be used by them.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in
writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under
its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is
executed by an attorney on behalf of the appointor, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must be
lodged with the instrument.

A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such a person as it thinks
fit to act as its representative at the Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act 1967.

This instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must:

a. if sent personally or by post, be lodged at the office of the Company's Share Registrar, B.A.C.S. Private Limited, at 77
Robinson Road #06-03 Robinson 77 Singapore 068896; or

b. if submitted by email, be received by the Company’s Share Registrar, B.A.C.S. Private Limited at main@zicoholdings.com,

in either case, by 10.00 a.m. on 28 October 2025 (being not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for
holding the AGM) (or at any adjournment thereof) and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed
or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in
the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.

In the case of members of the Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the Company
may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members are not shown to have shares entered against
their names in the Depository Register 72 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting as certified by The Central
Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting this proxy form, the members of the Company accept and agree to the personal data privacy terms as set out in the
Notice of AGM dated 16 October 2025.
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